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Commissioner

Katja S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271.9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-27M332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

December 3, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to Retroactively amend existing contracts with the vendors listed below to continue providing
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for individuals with Opiold Use Disorder,
by exercising renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $204,962 from
$333,974.48 to $538,936.48 and by extending the completion dates from September 29, 2020 to
September 29, 2021 effective retroactive to September 29, 2020 upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Govemor and Council as specified In the table
below.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Greater Tilton

Area Family
Resource

Center,
Tilton/NH

297434-

R001

Greater Tilton

Area
$138,740 $88,323 $227,063

0: 08/14/19.
Item #10

Granite

Pathways,
Concord/NH

228900-

8001
Statewide $195,234.48 $116,639 $311,873.48

0: 09/18/19,
Item #19

Total: $333,974.48 $204,962 $538,938.48

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

The Deportment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence..
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EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because sufncient funds in State Fiscal Year 2021 were not
available in the operating budget considering the grant amount awarded, and due to delay by the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) in approving New
Hampshire's requests for continued State Opiokj Response Grant funding, the efforts to add the
state appropriations were deferred.

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide vocational training supports and
workforce readiness programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorders who are in treatment and
recovery settings and who are seeking to join and/or re-join the workforce. Employment has long
been recognized as a criticarelement in the recovery process, providing people with hope and
opportunity to move forward in the recovery process determined by principles of self-
determination.

Approximately 100 individuals will be served from September 29. 2020 to September 29,
2021.

This vendors will continue integrating workforce readiness programming into treatment
and recovery settings, Including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The vendors will link tKe individual to
appropriate vocational trainings with the provision of training stipends and other resources to aid
the individual on the path to employment. Vocational training may include, but is not limited to,
assistance with resume writing, completing job applications, and improving interviewing skills.

Unique to these services is a robust level of client-specific data that will be available, which
will be collected in coordination with the Regional Doorways. The State Opioid Response grant
requires that all individuals served receive a comprehensive assessment at several time intervals,
specifically at intake, six (6) months after intake, and upon discharge. Through collaborative
agreements with the vendors under these contracts, the Regional DoonArays gather data on client-
related outcomes including; recovery status, criminal justice involvement, employment, and
housing needs at the time intervals listed above. The data collected enables the Department to
measure short and long-term outcomes associated with State Opioid Response-funded initiatives
and to determine which programs are generating the best results for the clients served.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures;

•  The Contractors will ensure ninety percent (90%) of individuals complete provided
training programs.

•  The Contractors will ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of Individuals gain
employment.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2.
Renewal of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals in
recovery seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options.
Workforce participation and consistent employment are critical components of an individual's
ability to remain in recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.
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Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.788, FAIN #71081685 and FAIN #71083326.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SPY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

0S-95-92-920S10-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DERI OF HHS;

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES. STATE OPIOID

RESPONSE GRANT

100% Federal Funds CFDA #93.788 FAIN H79TI081685 and H79TI083326

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center, Tilton/NH Vendor #

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 5110,992 (540,911) 570,081

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 527,748 50 527,748

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 SO 529,234 529,234

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 50 566,667 566,667

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 50 533,333 533,333

Sub Total 5138,740 588,323 5227,063

Granite Pathways. Concord/NH Vendor #

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 5149,896 (577,213) 572,683

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 545,338 50 545,338

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 SO 543,852. 543,852

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 50 5100,000 5100,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 50 550,000 550,000

Sub Total 5195,234 5116,639 5311,873

Overall Total! $333,9741 $204,9621 $538,9361

Attachment - Bureau ot Behavioral Health

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1



DocuSign Envelope ID; DF1DD4BE-496A-419A-95E1-49807F64959C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals
with OUD Contract

This 1*' Amendment to the Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with
a place of business at 5 Prospect St, Tilton, NH 03276.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18, 2019, (Item #19), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1,
Revisions/Exceptions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2. Renewal, the Contract may be
amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$227,063.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3. Reporting, by adding Subsection 3.2. to read:

3.2. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic surveys,
and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the Department and/or
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA).

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4. Performance Measures, by adding Subsection
4.4. to read:

4.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract management,
improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

5. Modify Exhibit A Scope of Services, Section 5. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
to read:

5. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

5.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded initiatives,
the Contractor shall ensure each Site:

5.1.1. Establishes formal information sharing and referral agreements with all Doorways
for substance use services that comply with all applicable confidentiality laws,
including 42 CFR Part 2.

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Amendment #1 Initials

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A01 Page 1 ot 1 Date l?/7/?n?n



DocuSign Envelope ID: DF1DD4BE-496A-419A-95E1-49807F64959C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

5.1.2. Completes client referrals to applicable Doorways for substance use services
within two (2) business days of a client's admission to the program.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract
effective date to review contract implementation.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans
associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

5.5. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all uses of flexible needs funds
and respite shelter funds are in compliance with the Department and SAMHSA
requirements.

5.6. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall assist clients with enrolling in public or
private health insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage and will
have staff trained in Presumptive Eligibility for Medicaid.

5.7. The Contractor and/or referred providers shalLaccept clients on Medicaid Assisted
Treatment (MAT) and facilitate access to MAT on-site or through referral for all clients
supported with SOR grant funds, as clinically appropriate.

5.8. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White
HIV/AIDs program for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

5.9. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all clients are regularly
screened for tobacco use, treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part of
treatment planning.

5.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply with all
appropriate Department, State of NH, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration SAMHSA, and other Federal terms, conditions, and requirement.

5.11. The Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may not be used,
directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or treatment using
marijuana. The Contractor agrees that:

5.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (OUD).

5.11.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual who or organization that
provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or
mental disorders.

5.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

5.11.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.

5.11.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the Department within
thirty (30) days of contract approval.

5.12. ,The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but not
limited to:

5.12.1. Invoicing:
DS

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Amendment #1 Contractor Initials K
RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A01 Page2 of 5 Date 12/4/2020



DocuSign Envelope ID: DF1DD4BE-496A-419A-9561-49807F64959C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

5.12.2. Funding restrictions: and

5.12.3. Billing.

6. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit B Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, in order to bring
payment terms into compliance with current Department of Administrative Services Manual of
Procedures standards, which is attached hereto and incorporated by refererice herein.

7. Modify Exhibit B-1 by reducing the total budget amount by $40,911, of which $29,234 is identified
as unspent funding that is being carried forward to fund the activities in this Agreement for SPY 21
(September 30, 2020 through December 31, 2020), as specified in Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1
NCE and for SFy21 (January 1, 2021 through June 30, 2021) in the amount of $11,677, as
specified in Exhibit B-4 Amendment #1 SOR II.

8. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1 NCE, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #1 SOR II, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 SOR II, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

HGreater Tllton Area Family Resource Center Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A01 Page 3 of 5 Date 12/4/2020



DocuSign Envelope ID; DF1DD48E-496A-419A-95E1-49807F64959C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain In full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective September 30, 2020, upon the date of Govemor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,
1

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

12/4/2020

Date

—OocuSign«d by:

SOQ4QOa«
NameiKatja Fox

Title: Director

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center

12/4/2020

Date

'OocuSigntd by:

6
•7COOA3^1Ba364?1
Y3oMicneTiName:'^"'^"®' uennon

Title. Executive Director

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Amendment #1

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A01 Page 4 of 5



DocuSign Envelope ID: DF1DD4BE-496A-419A-95E1-49807F64959C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OoeuSianed by;

12/11/2020

rr— \ ■—PseA3twcstjW*E.. :
Date Name: Catherine Pinos

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Amendment #1

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A01 Page 5 of 5



OocuSign Envelope ID: DF1DD4BE-496A-419A-95E1-49807F64959C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as awarded on 09/30/2018,
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and as awarded

on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2
CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR
§200.87.

2.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 through Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 SOR II.

4. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows:

4.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other payor sources.

4.2'. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

4.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows:

4.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization
(MCO), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract with the

MCO.

4.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the

Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

4.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale
Program.

4.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,
charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th)

working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for
—OS

HGreater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor initials.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DF1DD4BE-496A-419A-95E1-49807F64959C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is

completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices shall

be net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this agreement.

The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for

wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i){1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries

and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work

performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking terhplates, which are available to the

Department upon request. n

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide

marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally

unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference

grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the

FOA. Grant funds may be used for light snacks, not to

exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

■ Ml
Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Exhibit B Amendment 01 Contractor Initials
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DF1DD4BE-496A-419A-95E1-49807F64959C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon

request.

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on

third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other

financial information as requested by the Department.

6. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complying with further

restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (PDA).

7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to

melissa.girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

SOR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

8. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of the

last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

9. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each

invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

10. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract

completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A-Amendment #3. Scope of Services, in

compliance with funding requirements.

■ 12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part

in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A, Amendment #3,

Scope of Services, including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports.

13. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting

amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years

and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both

parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and

justified.

14. Audits

,  DS

KGreater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DFlbD4BE-496A-419A-956l-49807F54959C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

14.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the

following conditions exist:

14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds

received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most recently

completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of
NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of

$1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and
Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by

an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days

after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the

requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial

audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the

Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the
Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source, may be

required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed by an
independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the

Contractor is high-risk.

14.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for

any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments

made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been

disallowed because of such an exception.

HGreater Tillon Area Family Resource Center Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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ExhlUt B-3 AnMndriMnl II NCE

New Hampshire Oepartmeni of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Namo: Graatar TIHon Araa Family Raaeurca Canlar '

Budgal Raquaat for; Workforca Raadlnaoa & Vocational Training Programs lor MlvMuals with QUO
RFP »IaecMS-1»woRKF-o;

Budgal Pariod; SFV2t OSm/Te-f 201/20 (NCE)

Contractor Shara I Match_Total_Prog«m_Coa^
IrKfiracI

Fundad by PHHS contract ahara

1. Total Salarv/Wagaa
2. EmplovBO Banollla

3. Cortsultsnis

4. Equiottiani:

5;_Sugglig^
Travel

7. Occupartcy

6. Current Eaparwes
9. Software

10. MarkebngfComrrmnlcatlons

^^^^^StkH^EducaUon^wtd^raimng.
12. Subcontrecta/Aoreementa

13. Other (apeeilic details marntalorY):
Paniclpani Needs

Sealegic Plantwq

•  TOTAL
irrdfract As A Percent of OlracI

29,234.00

Greater Tilon Area Famfly Resource Center
RFP-2019-BOAS-12-WORKF-02-A01
Exhltxt B-3 AmandmenI t1 NCE

Page 1 of 1

H
Conkactor

,^,, 12/4/2020



DocuSign Envelope ID: DF1DD4BE-496A-419A-95E1-49807F64959C

EzhJM B-4 Am*n<im*M »1 SCR ■

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Nam*; Graalar TiRon Araa Family Raaourc* Cantar

Budeat Ra<|i>aat for; WorMorca Raadinaat & Vocational Training Programa for tndlvldualB with DUO
AFP-201PSCUS-1MVOr»(F«

Budgat Parted; SFY21 01/01/21-06/30121 (SORII)

Contractor Shara I Match Fundad by OHHS contracl ahara

Urta Ram

Total Program Coat

Indiract Indlract

1. Total Saiary/Woooa

2. Emplovae Bortafita 3.251,70
3. ConauKanIs

4;_E3iJigrnonl^
5-_Suggji«^
6. Travel

7. Occtn>af>cy

6. Ctmenl Eaoanaaa

9. Soflwaca 1.000.00
10. Markotit»o/Communieationa 4,000.00 4,000.00
n. Staff Education and Training 1,000.00 1,000.00
12. Sut>eonlracta/AqraarT>anla

13- Olhar (apacifa: dataib niandaiory):
Partlcipanl Naeda

Stiaiaqie Pianninq

66.666.00

Indiraci Aa A Parcant of Olract

Graalar Tlton Araa Family Raaourca Cantar
ftFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-O2-A01

ExhibR B-4 AmandmanI m SOR II

Papa 1 of 1

H
Conlraelor '-tf rA,,,

^^12/4/2020
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ExhM B-S Amendment ft SOR I

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contreeter Name: Greater TIKon Area Family Reeeuree Center

Budpet Rectireet for Workforce Readiness S Vocatlortal Training Programs for Individuals with CUD
AFP-JOlMOAS-fMVOAKM?

Budget Perfod: $FY2I 07/01f21-OSr29f21 (SORII)

^ToJal^ProjrMTi^Cc^r Cordractor Share / Match. Funded by OHMS contract share

Line Hern Irrdlrect

2;_^olal^a!^2Ws2^L
2. Emptowe Bertelila

3. Consultants

4j_E2Wgo>oot^
5. Suttpik

B. Travel

7. OccutMmcY

8;_^orrent_Ex£e;g«^
9. Software

10. MarkelinolCommunicatiorts

11. Staff Education and Trakiifig

12. Sut>eont>acts/Aqreements

13. Other (specitie details mandalorY):
Partlcipanl Needs

Straleqic Plantanq

"SnSTBT ■raw ■raw
Indirect As A Percent of Direct

Greeler Tilon Aree Family Resource Center
RFP.2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A01
Exhibit B-5 Amendment 01 SOR II
Page 1 of 1

K
Contractor

^,12/4/2020
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFJCATE

I, Wiilian M. Gerdoer. Seoctaiy ofStBtcof the State of New Hanipdttrc. do hseby cerdfy thai GREATER TILTON AREA

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER is a New Hampshire Ncoprofit Coipomioa regiiiercd to tnaiaci busiocss in New Hampshire on

October 09.20IS. 1 ftotbcr certify thai all fees and documents required fay the Scoeiaiy ofSlate"* ofCcc have been leceh'cdasid

is to good ctaodiDg as farts this oftkt is ooncenKd.

Business ID: 71356d

Ceniflcstc Number 0804925130

%

69

%
%
%

IN TESnXtONV ̂ V'HEREOF.

] hereto set my band and eaiise to be afTixcd

the Seal of the Stale of Netc Hampshire,

this 3rd day of June A.D. XI20.

Williatp M. Gardner

Secretary of State

CN
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/KCOKO CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

12/4/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

A W Frost Agency, Inc.
354 Central Street
Franklin, NH 03235

CONTACT
NAME:

Kc^nV Exti: (603) 934-3319 T/Cc. noi:(603) 934-7227

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICF

INSURER A Mount Vernon Fire Insurance

INSURED

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center
5 Prospect St
Tilton, NH 03276

INSURERS Proaresslve Insurance Grouo 24252

INSURERS Wesco Insurance Comoanv

INSURERS

INSURERE

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIEiS OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
I.TR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

iNSn
SUBR
WVD POUCYNUMBER

POUCY EFF
IMM/DDrYYYYl

POUCY EXP
rMM/nD/YYYYl LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

E  OCCUR NPP2567856B 2/1/2020 2/1/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
j  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES lEaocctxrencel

MED EXP lAnv one oerton)

•j 100,000
~  5^

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY
J  1,000,000

GEN-L AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE
J  2,000,000

X POLICY 1 \^Si 1 Iloc
OTHER:

PRODUCTS ■ COMP/OP AGG
,  2,000,000

s

B AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

00943918-2 7/24/2020 1/24/2021

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT ,  1,000,000

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per oerson) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

aIS^ ONLY

X sc
Al
HEDULEO
rros

ffom?

BOCHLY INJURY (Per accklenll s

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per ecadantl s

s

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EAOl OCCURRENCE s

AGGREGATF s

DEO 1 RETENTION S
C WORKERS COMPENSATKIN

AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY ^ ̂ ̂
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE rrTl

[^anSal^^n EXCLUDED? | N |
If yes. dsacflbe under
DFSCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

WWC3461912 4/2/2020 4/2/2021

PER 1 OTH-
STATUTF 1 FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
,  100,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
,  100,000

E.L. CHSFASE - POLICY LIMIT
J  500,000

A Directors & Officers NPP2567856B 2/1/2020 2/1/2021 per claim 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddHlonal Rftintrk* Schcdul*. may b« aRachad H mora apaca la raquirad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant St

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center
Tilton, NH 03276

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greater Tilton Area Family
Resource Center, (a nonprofit organization),which comprise the statement of financial
position as of December 31, 2018, and the related statement of activities and cash flows
for,the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation, and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perfomi the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement. . ' ,

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the '
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial staterhents, whether due to fraud or. error. In making those risk/assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair,
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness, of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to.
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

-1-



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to the above present fairly, In all material
respects, the financial position of Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center as of
December 31, 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements taken as a whole. Jhe schedule of functional expenses on page ten is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the.responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such Information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole.

Wheeler, Ring, Dolan & Dupuis, PC

Manchester, N. H. 03104
January 29, 2019

-2-



GREATER TILTON AREA FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31,2018.

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable program
Prepaid expenses

$ 45,541.

25,672
3,957

Total Current Assets 75,170

Poperty and Equipment

Office Equipment
Leasehold Improvements

Furniture and Fixtures

6,082

3,499

2,634

Total Property and Equipment

Less Accumulated Depreciation

'  12,215
1,299

Net Property and Equipment 10,916

TOTAL ASSETS $ 86,086

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

• Accrued payroll and related expenses 7,522

Total Current Liabilities 7,522

Net Assets

Without Donor Restrictions •

With Donor Restrictions

78,564

Total Net Assets 78,564

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 86,086

(See accompanying notes to these financial statements)
-3- •



. GREATER TILTON AREA FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Operating Revenue
Net program service fees
Contributions

Other operating revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Expenses .
Peer Recovery Support
Family Support and Parent Education
Forever Hope Training Center

'  General and Administrative

Total Expenses

OPERATING (LOSS) INCOME

$  277,214

16,826

32,287

326,327

150,420
48,784

17,443

42,223

258,870

67,457

Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets at beginning of year

■NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

67,457

- 11,107

$  ■ 78,564

(See accompanying notes to these financial statements)
-4-



GREATER TILTON AREA FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets without donor restrictions
(Increase) decrease in the following assets:

. Accounts receivable program
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses .

Net Cash (Used) Provided By Operating Activities

67,457

(17,660)
(3,957)

(3,500)
5,473

47,813

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

. Purchase of capital assets

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year'

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

(12,215)

35,598

9,943

45,541,

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash expended for interest

(See accompanying notes to these financial statements)
-5-



GREATER TILTON AREA FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION

Greater Tiltoh Area Family Resource Center is a non-profit, 501 (c )3 community
based organization with the purpose to strengthen and empower individuals,
families, and the greater Tilton area community by promoting health, well-being, ,
and self-sufficiency through positive relationships, support, collaboration, and
education.

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The summary of significant accounting policies of Greater Tilton Area Family
Resource Center is presented to assist In understanding the Organization's
financial statements. The financial statements and notes are representations of
Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center's management who is responsible
for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles and have t>een consistently applied in
the. preparation of the financial.statements.

The financial statements of Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center have
been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. The significant accounting
policies followed are described below.

Financial statement presentation

Financial statement-presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board in its Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2016-14, "Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities'. Under

ASU 2016-14. Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes
of net assets: assets without donor restrictions and assets with donor

restrictions. Assets without donor restrictions were $78,564 at December 31,
2018. There were, no assets with donor restrictions at December 31, 2018.

Contributions

- Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or

net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the exiistence and/or nature of'
any donor-imposed restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the donor
are reported as an increase in net assets without donor restriction if the
restriction expires within the reporting period in which the contribution is
recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are reported as an increase

-6-



GREATER TILTON AREA FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED December 31, 2018

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the restriction.
• When a restrictlbn expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the
statement of activities as net assets released from restriction.

Contributed property, equipment and supplies are recorded at fair value at the
date of donation. Contributions with donor-imposed stipulations regarding how
long the contributed asset must be used are recorded as net assets with donor
restrictions, otherwise, the contributions are recorded as net assets without
donor restrictions.

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, Greater Tilton
Area Family Resource Center considers all short-term investments with an
original maturity of three months or lessto'be cash equivalents. At December
si , 2016 there were no cash equivalents..

Allowance for doubtful accounts - Greater Tilton Area Resource Center

considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible, accordingly, no allowance .
for doubtful accounts is required.

Depreciation and fixed assets - Property and equipment are stated at cost if
purchased and at fair market value on the date of the donations if donated. .
Depreciation is computed using straight-line and accelerated methods based on
the estimated useful life of each asset. Estimated useful lives used for building
and improvements are ten to thirty- nine years and for furniture and fixtures three
to seven years.

-7-



GREATER TILTON AREA FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2018 •

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income taxes - The Organization is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt from
income taxes under Section 501 (c )3 of the Internal Revenue Code and classified by the
Internal Revenue Service as other than a private foundation.

The Organization adopted the recognition requirements for uncertain income tax

positions as required by generally accepted.accounting principles, with no cumulative
effect adjustment.reiquired. Income tax benefits are recognized for
Income tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, only when it is
determined that the income tax position will more -likely-than-not t>e sustained upon
examinatioii by taxing authorities. The Organization has analyzed tax positions taken for
filing with the Internal Revenue Service and the state jurisdiction where it operates. The
Organization believes that income tax filing positions will be sustained upon examination
and does not anticipate any adjustments that would result in a material adverse affect on
the Organization's financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. Accordingly, •
the Organization has not recorded any reserves, or related accruals for Interest and
penalties for uncertain income tax positions at December 31, 2018.

Functional expenses - Functional and administrative expenses have been allocated
among program services based on an analysis of personnel time and space utilized for
the activities.

NOTE 3 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Employees "of Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center did not have a paid personal'
days policy In effect at December 31, 2018; therefore ho expense was accrued. An
earned benefit time police was implemented on January 1, 2019.. No more than 240,
180 and 120 hours for full time, %time and time employees, respectively, of personal
leave may be carried over from the previous year's employment calculated on a
calendar year basis.

NOTE 4 - MAJOR GRANTORS

A Substantial portion of Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center's revenue comes
from a flow through grant from the Department of Health and Human Services of the
State of New Hampshire through Harbor Homes. For the year ended Decernber 31,
2018 revenue from the contract was approximately 63% of total revenue.

-8-



GREATER TILTON AREA FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2018.

NOTE 5 AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The following represents Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center's financial assets
at December 31, 2018;

Financial a^ets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents $45,541
Accounts receivable program 25.672

Total financial assets 71,213

Less amounts not available to be used within one year :

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures
over the next twelve months $71.213

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center's goal is generally to maintain financial
assets to meet 90 days of operational expenses (approximately $65,000).

NOTE 6 - EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through January 29, 2019, the date
which the financial statements were available to be Issued.

-9-



GREATER TaTON AREA FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018

Personnel

Occupancy

Contract Labor

Travel

Program Supplies
Payroll taxes
Communications

Insurance

Training

Depredation
Professional fees

Other Expenses

Peer Rocovciy • Family Support and Forever Hope
Support " Parent Education Training Center

$82,020

30,243

5,404

12,670

2,396

6,702

3,797

1,284

U60

342

210

4,192

S28,744

300

3,145

284

4,632

2,418

2,172

647

603

767

5,072

6,996

1,016

5,028

32

4,276

46

49

$150/420 $48,784 517,443

Total

Program Expenses

5  110,764

30,543

15,545

13,970

12,056

9,120

6,001

1,284

6,083

991

977

• 9,313
S216M7

General &

Administrative' Total

$13,125

9,592

5,242

1,791

. 1,003

^109

6,321

308

83

^649

$42,223

$123,889

40,135

20,787

13,970

13347

10,123

8,110

7305

6383

1399

1360

11,962

$258370

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
-10-
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GTAFRC Board of Directors 2020

Affiliation Office Year

elected

Term#

Donna

Toomey

Navigator

Outreach

Coordinator

President 2015 ■ 2016-2017

2018-2019

2020^
2021

Lisa Trembiay RN Vice-

president

2018 2018-2019

-2020-20211

2022-2023

Brad Davis Attorney Secretary 2018 2018-2019

2020-20^'
2022-2023

Cynthia Cook Health First

Triage Nurse

Treasurer 2015 2016-2017

2018-2019

2020-;
>  • f

2021

Pat Tucker LADC 2016 2017-2018

2019-2020

2020^2021!

Scott A. Burns Franklin School

Board

2015 2016-2017

2018-2019

2020:i
2021

Nancy

Nemcovich

LADC 2018
i

2018-2019

2_q^2pnj
S21-2022

Nicole

Robbins

Housing

Specialist

2018 2018-2019

2020-2021

2022-2023 |
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DARRYL LENNON

Trainer for Forever Hope Training Center

a Training Program of the Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center

EXPERIENCE

CONSTRUCTION UNTIL 2009 ACCIDENT

2012 TEEN CHALLENGE STUDENT

2013 BECAME STAFF GREATER TILTON AREA FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER

RECOVERY SUPPORT STAFF, TEEN CHALLENGE

Supervision, Support to participants

2015VOUNTEER

2018 STAFF GREATER TILTON AREA FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER

RECOVERY COACH/TRAINER, GREATER TILTON AREA FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER

Recovery Coach, Telephone Recovery Support Supervisor/Manager, Trainer of Recovery Coach

Academy, Recovery Basics

Certified Facilitator-Sober Parenting Journey, Positive Solutions for Families, Parent Cafes

Speaker/Advocacy

Accu-detox trained

EDUCATION

CCAR Recovery Coach Academy & Train the Trainers

Parent Cafe Training Institute

Accudetox practitioner training

Connect Suicide Prevention

Trends in HIV/AIDS

Trauma Informed Care for the Homeless

Trauma Informed Care

Addiction in My Family

Strengthening Families

School for Addiction Studies-Multiple topics

Recovery Coaching a Harm Reduction Path\way TOT by the authors

Standards of Quality for Family Strengthening and Support

Strengthening Families Framework
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SKILLS

•  Microsoft office Suite

•  Recover Data Piatform Credentialed

•  Excellent at resource Coordination

•  Employment for individuals with CUD specialist

support

ACTIVITIES

•  Multiple speaking engagements and television appearances with New Futures Advocacy

Organization, the Partnership for Public Health '
•  Public speaking for multiple events, Including Overdose Vigils, panel discussions, outreach

events, and youth prevention/educational events

•  Maintaining long term stable recovery in current pathway

•  Sharing of story of recovery as an inspiration to others

•  Excellent at taking direction and initiative, completing tasks as assigned, and working effectively

as part of a team that includes community stakeholders

•  Articulate, and good communication skills
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PROFILE .

-  In response to the opiold.epldemio-ln her
immunity, and with a'passion fpr
.working wtth;farnilies,.Michei!e and her

. cpmmunityiopened.the^Greater.iT^
/^ea Family Rewurce'Geriterin;26l5_! ;

'  She is (^rrOTjly.th'e'Ex'ecutjve Director.,
^-TrtejGTAFRC ha's becpm'e a moiiel for

suppoi^ng'indlyiduiais affected by --
. substance use^in tfie, context of'their

farhily,and within tlieir communi^j!
' MIcheiie is a c^ifted Parent EduM^

Nu'rtu'dng!,Skil|.s, Parent as.jT.eai^erc. ahd.j
. Actjye.Par-entihg'and is a^.Certified >frainer

for tiie.ConnecticutCornrnuni^jfo^ '' '7
Addiction Recoveiys,.R^oye^C.c^ ' ,
Aca'derny and,Recovery.Basicsior^ • . "7
•Parents: Michelials.active ih"nutT»erdus ^
corrimunity.enlj.stete'advisory. boards
is Pastor of l^e Nprthfieid-Titt^ i", ' -
Gongregatibnal Church'".

eONTAGT

MICHELLE J. (BLAIS
BETTS)LENNON

EDUCATION

Evangelical Theological Seminary
Currently Enrolled
Doctor of Biblical Counseling

MA Ministry 2015

University of Massachusetts Dartmouth
BA History, Minor-Women's Studies 1992

WORK EXPERIENCE

L ' .. . - ''..i •-
Ci'-- -.:' < ■

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center
2015-present
Founder and Executive Director

Forever Hope Training Center - Greater Tilton Area Family Resource
Center
2017-pre$ent
National trainer In numerous topics

Northfield-Tilton Congregational Church
2D14-present

Northfield-Tilton Congregational Church
2014-present

Family Resource Center of Central NH - Laconia, NH
2012-2015
Family Support Specialist/Parent Educator

•V

•• f-'- .

RECENT AWARDS

2019-Parent Information Center Family Engagement Recognition
2018-Parent for Public Health for Outstanding Contribution in the Field of

Substance Misuse Prevention
2018-New Futures Kids Count Award
2016,2018 - Franklin Savings Bank Community Advancement Award

, • .'.'.1.
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Objective:

Seeking position that allows me to work independently and collaboratively with community
partners for person (s) with complex needs towards rehabilitation addressing the social
determinants of health and promoting education around mental health and substance use

Education:

Laconia High School - Graduate 1983

Course requirements for CRSW: 2018- Current, next scheduled course Sept 7,2019
Employer sponsored workshops include:' Medical terminology. Biology, Chemistry, Phlebotomy.
HIV Trends and Treatment, CERT, Stop the bleed. Suicide Prevention(GateKeeper)

Experience:
11/04/2013 - Present: HealthFirst Family Care Center, Laconia, NH
Medical Records Coordinator

• Process Medical Records Releases

- Track In-Coming and Out-going Medical Records

• Daily scanning and docu-tracking of lab, imaging, hospital reports, new
patient records, etc.

-Initiating conversation with providers and follow up with high needs patients regarding their
medical records from hospital admissions and appointments in the community to increase

. collaboration and increased support if appropriate

2010 - 2016- Christmas Island Restaurant, Laconia, NH

Owner/Operator

- Restored profitability to Christmas Island Restaurant

- Manages restaurant operations in terms of staffing, scheduling and payroll

- Negotiates terms with vendors/suppliers

- Ensures provisions of services in terms of order accuracy and time management
- Manages inventory, stocks and supplies while addressing customer complaints and queries
- Trained and supervised various positions, accommodating as necessary for success of restaurant

2006 - 2010 -Metrocast, Belmont, NH

Customer Service Representative
- Worked with CSG, RIO and BBX Software

- Software programs used to trouble shoot and maintain customer profiles
- Net2phone - Order entry for digital phone
- Created a training program for new employees
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Skills:

20+ years working with the public- Experience in Management- Excellent Communication

skills

Ability to Multitask in Time Efficient Manner- HIPPA Compliant-

Ability to work Independently and with Team- Crisis Intervention- Knowledgeable about

Community Needs/ Resources- Ability to use/create various therapeutic techniques to

engage members in the community towards treatment-

Responsible for facilitating appropriate protocol to satisfy grant requirements- Interacts
with varied population of clients; i.e. socioeconomic, gender, mental health patients,

substance abuse patients and various ethnicities-

•  Created Prison Program for Beiknap County House of Corrections- Assists inmates in

signing up for health insurance-

•  Homeless Outreach Worker-Provides food, clothing and information to homeless

community-

•  Act as point of first contact for homeless to direct to community resources- Provides

education to community around mental illness and stigma

References available upon request:
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Susan Fabiano

Summary of Qualifications:
•  Self-Motivated, able to set priorities to achieve immediate and long-term goals and meet operational deadlines,
•  Proven interpersonal skills, cooperative team player, yet equally effective, motivated, and hard working independently.

Employment Experience:

2002-2019

Practice Manager/Concord Hospital

Established positive relationships with Providers.

Mentor and support development of other practice leaders.

Recruit, retain and develop staff and manage performance.

Monitor annual department productivity, quality, fiscal goals and staffing.

Responsible for customer relations and customer service initiatives.

Support departmental'and organizational change.

Ensure compliance with State, Local, Federal regulatory requirements.

2000-2002

Office Manager/Account Representalive/GIG Physician Services

•  Manage day-to-day operations in support of clients to include input of data, daily claims submission, accounting, and report
generation. Includes the management of employees.

•  Establish timeframes and expectations in the implementation of new business. Set up client data base and establish

appropriate work functions to meet client needs and contractual terms.

•  Generate reporting on a daily and monthly basis. Meet with clients to review reports and accounts receivable.
•  Act as a liaison between GIG PS and Client Office Mangers and/or Physicians.

•  Provide feedback to client regarding updates in billing procedures and requirements.

1993-2000

Provider Relations Representative/Healthsource, NH/CIGNA HealthCare of NH

•  Act as an external liaison between Healthsource/Cigna and provider network for representation of CIGNA policy, procedure,
and philosophy.

•  Prepared and presented educational overview for audiences ranging in size from one to three hundred.

•  Serviced assigned territory that consisted of Primary Care Physicians. Specialists and Hospitals.

•  Met with top 20% of physician practices, both primary and specialty, at least twice yearly.

•  Reviewed and educated assigned territory on clinical efficiency reporting, incentive programs and disease management

recommendations.

•  Maintained ail follow up standards for ail verbal, written and face to face interactions. ^

Awards & Acknowledgements:

STAR Award, 2005, Concord Hospital

Quality Achievement Award, 2000, CIGNA HealthCare of NH

Circle of Excellence Award, 2000, CIGNA HealthCare of NH

Circle of Excellence Award, 1999, CIGNA HealthCare of NH

Award of Excellence, 1989, Chubb Life/America

Extraordinary Customer Relations - Skills and Strategies, 1996 '
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Objective:

Seeking position that allows me to work independently and coilaboratively with community
partners for person (s) with complex needs towards rehabilitation addressing the social
determinants of health and promoting education around mental health and substance use

Education:

Laconia High School - Graduate 1983

Course requirements for CRSW: 2018- Current, next scheduled course Sept 7,2019
Employer sponsored workshops include: Medical terminology. Biology, Chemistry, Phlebotomy,
HIV Trends and Treatment, CERT, Stop the bleed. Suicide Prevention(GaCeKeeper)

Experience:
11/04/2013 - Present; HealthFirst Family Care Center, Laconia, NH
Medical Records Coordinator

• Process Medical Records Releases

■ Track In-Coming and Out-going Medical Records
- Daily scanningand docu-trackingof lab, imaging, hospital reports, new
patient records, etc.

-Initiating conversation with providers and follow up with high needs patients regarding their
medical records from hospital admissions and appointments in the community to Increase
collaboration and increased support if appropriate

2010 - 2016- Christmas Island Restaurant, Laconia, NH

Owner/Operator

- Restored profitability to Christmas Island Restaurant

- Manages restaurant operations in terms of staffing, scheduling and payroll
■ Negotiates terms with vendors/suppliers
- Ensures provisions of services in terms of order accuracy and time management
- Manages inventory, stocks and supplies while addressing customer complaints and queries
- Trained and supervised various positions, accommodating as necessary for success of restaurant

2006 - 2010 -Metrocast, Belmont, NH

Customer Service Representative

- Worked with CSG, RIO and BEX Software

- Software programs used to trouble shoot and maintain customer profiles
- Net2phone - Order entry for digital phone
- Created a training program for new employees
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Skills:

20+ years working with the public- Experience in Management- Excellent Communication

skills

Ability to Multitask in Time Efficient Manner- HIPPA Compliant-

Ability to work Independently and with Team- Crisis Intervention- Knowledgeable about
Community Needs/ Resources- Ability to use/create various therapeutic techniques to

engage members in the community towards treatment-

Responsible for facilitating appropriate protocol to satisfy grant requirements- Interacts
with varied population of clients; i.e. socioeconomic, gender, mental health patients,

substance abuse patients and various ethnicities-

•  Created Prison Program for Belknap County House of Corrections- Assists inmates in

signing up for health insurance- ,

•  Homeless Outreach Worker-Provides food, clothing and information to homeless

community-

•  Act as point of first contact for homeless to direct to community resources- Provides

education to community around mental illness and stigma

References available upon request:
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Organization: Greater Tilton Area Resource Recovery Center

Funder: Workforce Grant FY2110/1/2020 - 9/30/2021

Name Job Title Salary
% Paid from this

Contract

Amount Paid from This

Contract

Lennon, Darryl TRSS Manager $43,680.00 50.000% $21,840.00

Hanley, Wendy
Employment
Specialist $41,600.00 100.000% $41,600.00

Lennon,
Michelle Executive Director $57,000.00 10.000% $5,700.00

Fabiano,
Susan Workforce Specialist $31,200.00 10.000% $3,120.00

$72,260.00
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16 ^

JcfTrry A. Meyen
Commlisieacr

Katja S. Fos,
Direcier

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 63301
603-271-9544 1-S00-S52-334S EiL 9544

Fit: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbhs.nh.gov

July 23, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House.
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division For Gehavorial Health, to enter Into
agreement with Greater Tllton Area Family Resource Center (Vendor U 297434-R001). 5 Prospect St
Tllton, NH 03276, in an amount not to exceed $138,740, to provide Workforce Readiness and Vocational
Training,Programs for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder, effective upon date of Governor and Council
approval, through September 29, 2020,. .100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name
Vendor

Number
Location Contract Amount

Greater Tllton Area

Family Resource Center
297434-R001 5 Prospect St.

Tilton, NH 03276
$138,740

Total: $138,740

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for State
Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust-encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DiV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES. STATE
OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Numl>er Total Amount

■  2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $110,992

2021 102-500731. Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $27,748

Total: $138,740
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His Exceller»cy. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 3

'  EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the design and implementation of vocational training supports
and workforce readiness programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorders in treatment and recovery
settings who are seeking to join and/or re-join the workforce. Employment has long been recognized as
a critical element in the recovery process, providing people with hope and opportunity to move forward
in the recovery process that is determined by principles of self-determination.

This request represents one (1) of two (2) anticipated contracts to provide vocational training
supports and workforce readiness programs. The Department anticipates awarding one (1) more
contract at the next available Governor and Executive Council meeting, upon receipt of the fully executed
contract documents.

The State of New Hampshire received funding through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA) State Opioid Response (SCR) grant opportunity. New Hampshire
will use evidence-based methods to expand treatment, recovery, and prevention services to individuals
with CUD in NH. These critical funds wall strengthen established programs that have had a positive impact
on the opioid crisis as well as expand the capacity for programs that have shown promise in helping
individuals battling an opioid misuse issue and stem the tide of the addiction epidemic in NH. In 2017,
NH had 488 opioid-related deaths, 2,774 emergency naloxone (Narcan) administrations, and 6.684
emergency department opioid related visits. NH is ranked as having the third highest overdose rate in
the country at 39 individuals per 100,000 population. The scope of work was developed, in part, through
a public comment forum which identified gaps in the system aimed at workforce training opportunities for
individuals with OUD. The services provided through these funds should leverage resources and
facilitate connections with the multiple workforce initiatives for individuals with SUD/OUD that have
emerged over the past two years, including the Governor's Recovery Friendly Workplace Program and
the Department of Labor National Health Emergency Demonstration grant for individuals in recovery,
provided under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014.

This agreement will require the vendor to integrate workforce readiness programming into
treatment and recovery settings, including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The vendor will link the individual to appropriate
vocational trainings with the provision of training stipends and other resources to aid the individual on the
path to employment. Vocational training may include, but is not limited to assistance with resume writing,
job applications, and improving interviewing skills.

Unique to these services is a robust level of client-specific data that will be available, which will
be collected in coordination with the Regional Hubs that were approved by Governor and Executive
Council at the October 31, 2018 meeting. The SCR grant requires that all individuals served receive a
comprehensive assessment at several time intervals, specifically at intake.^six (6) months and upon
discharge. Through collaborative agreements with the vendor under this contract, the Regional Hubs wrill
be responsible for gathering data on client-related outcomes including; recovery status, criminal justice
involvement, employment.* and housing needs at the time intervals listed above. This data will enable the
Department to measure short and long-term outcomes associated valh SOR-funded initiatives and to
determine which programs are generating the l>est results for the clients served.

Approximately one hundred (100) individuals will be sen/ed from Governor and Executive Council
approval through September 29. 2020.

This vendor was selected for this project through a competitive bid process. A Request for
Proposals was posted on The Department of Health and Human Services' web site from November 15.
2018 through December 13, 2018. In addition, a notice was sent by email to a wide variety of
stakeholders and potential vendors. The Department received four (4) proposals. The proposals were
reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program specific knowledge. The review included a
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council..

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals in recovery
se.eking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options. Workforce
participation and consistent employment are critical components of an individual's ability to remain in
recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration. State Opioid Response Grant, (CFOA #93.788, FAIN TI081685)

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available, General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

jffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Tht Dtpatttrunt of HtoUh and Humcn Sttuiea'liitaon u tajo'm (ommunirir* and fomilitt
tn providingapportunititi for ddteni to aehitvt htaJlh artd indtpertdme*.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
-Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Woilrfoff Rettflnen end VocsUonal TnMng
Progranis for (ndtvldusl* with Oplotd Um

RFP-2019-8OAS-12^0RKF

RFPName RFP Number

1.

Bidder Name Pass/Fail

bSaslinum

Points

Actual

Points
2.

Greater Tllton Area Family Resource Center 760 669
.  3.

Headrest. Inc. 760 616
4.

Granite Pathways, inc. 750 683 5.

Famny Resource Center at Gorham 760 443
6.

Reviewer Names
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✓ PORM NUMBER M7 (vtrvleo S/8/15}
Subject Workforce ReotHngii & Vocnilonnl TnilmnT! Pfimnimi fpf liMllvtduall with OUD/RFP-2019-BPAS-H-WQRKf-tt

Nottea; Tbb i^etnent tod ill of Us ttUtchmeoti thall bsconw publlo npOQ Dfbrnlttlon to Qovcroor ood
Executive Council for tpprovsl. Any informuion (hn Is privBte, eonfldentlal or pmpnAiry must
be cIccHy IdemlSed to the ageocy tgtted toin wrltifig prior to dcnins (he coolnct

AGREEMENT

The State ofHew Ktmpsblro end (he Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIPICATION.
,1.1 Slate Agency Name
NH Dopctmcat of Health end Humen Services

1.2 State Ageney Addmsi
(29 Pleasaat Street

CoAcciRl,NH033010tS7

IJ Contractor Name

Oreiter Tillon Area Family Resource Center
1.4 Contractor Address

S Prospect St
TThOQ. NH 03276

IJ Contractor Phone

' Number

603-2t6-4266

1.6 Acceuot Noniber

0$46«M20810>7040

\ .7 Complctton Data

Spctember 29,2020

I.B Price Limitation

SI38.740

1.9 Coruractiog OfTleer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director
Bureaa orComrtcts and Procurement

1.10 Scale Ageney Tele^ne Number
60M7I-963I

I.II CootractorSignature-

(LLCl^uA^
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Sig&itDfy

(L^rAhid Cook^jr^QSortr
1.13 Acknowtcdgemeni: State of jij?? . County of

OtfJunc^,^^9 , before the undersigned ofRcer, personally appeared the parson Idsntlfled
pmvtn (0 be the person whose tiinte Is ligrted la btock i.ll, and acluio^cdged that t/he executed l^s^
Indicated in blocfc 1.12. 5 t— — I n—t _ _Pg>gt£fli
1.13.1 Slgnsmre of Notary Public or Justice of tbe Peace

jSoiL
/-I.13J Name and Title ofNotary or Justice ofthePesfic

pA-T^lC^n E3S/^J3L . AJi-nhes/
1.14 Stale Agency Signature ,  . 1.13 Name andTlile of Stale ABeecySlgtatory

ral by the N.H. Department of Administration, Dlvtston of Pcrsdhad1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Admiaistretion, Dlvtston of PcrsStdd

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by (be Attorney General (Form, Substance tod Exeeuiton) Ofapplieable}

1.18 ApproAl by the Qdvcrttor and Executive Council l^ctPp/JcaNaj

Hr On:

Page \ of4
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (veolon 5/8/15)
Subjcci; Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for (ndividuals with OUD/RFP-2Q19-BDAS-I2-WORXF«02

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Stale Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Greater Tilion Area Family Resource Center
1.4 Contractor Address

5 Prospect St
Tilton. NH 03276

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-286-4255

1.6 Account Number

297434-ROOl

1.7 Completion Date

Spetember 29,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

S!38,740

1.9 Contracting Officer for Stale Agency
Nathan D. While, Director
Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1. II Contractor Signature . I.I2 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

(l(jr&h,a Cock^lreaSurer
1.13 Acknowledgement: State of .County of

, before the undersigned olTicer, personally appeared the person identified y^^^rT'l'^-.'oV^Jfe&torily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block i. 11, and acknowledged that s/he executed t|d^^^meMYn the eim^ty
indicated in block 1.12. 5 / 5
1.13.1 Signature o^Notary Public or Justice of the Peace = : 001.1^*^10 • f

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace ' *

^  AjoiTh^
1.14 Stale Agency Signature

Date:^P^\v^
1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Persdtnfel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

1.18 ApproN^il by the Qi^verifor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By: On:

Page I of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, aaing
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor Identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
,3.) Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.'

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
•giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 In the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. contract PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The Stale reserves the right to ofTset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7*c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND Regulations/ equal employment
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
includirig, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opponunlty"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United Stoles issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date In block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date (o
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Agreement. This provision shal! survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.) .3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days af^er giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement end ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, -
all whether fmished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 •A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifieen (IS) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail ell Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,000per occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate; ond
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all .
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
ideniined in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certifictite(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certiflcate(s) of
insurance for all renewat(s) of insurance required under this
' Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached end are
Incorporated herein by reference. Each certiflcate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15. I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensalion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shell
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer Identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 'A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof afler any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only af^er approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, rhodify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this A^eement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational

Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

'  Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire Genera) Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Sen/ices described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has Identified the Contractor as
a Subrecipient. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for a minimum of one hundred (100) individuals with Opioid Use Disorder(OUD) in the
Greater Tilton Area, which includes:

1.4.1. Tilton.

1.4.2. Northfield.

1.4.3. Franklin.

1.4.4. Sanbomton.

1.4.5. Surrounding small towns.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who participate in Workforce Readiness and
Vocational Training programs are referred to treatment and recovery services, when
applicable.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide workforce readiness programming to individuals with
OUD who are receiving treatment or recovery support services. The Contractor shall
ensure workforce readiness programming shall include, but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Job specific skills training.

2.2.2. Resume and cover letter assistance.

2.2.3. Communication skills.

2.2.4. Time management skills.

2.2.5. Budgeting and financial management skills.

2.2.6. Customer sen/ice training.

2.2.7. Job retention approaches.

2.2.8. Networking skills.

2.2.9. Application and interview assistance, including mock Inteiviews.

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Exhbit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational

Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

Exhibit A

2.2.10. Connections to employment resources.

2.3. The Contractor shall implement a process to identify, recruit and engage individuals
with an OUD. including individuals not currently receiving services from the Contractor,
who may be interested in pursuing employment and/or educational oppoiiunlties or
who may be underemployed and are seeking a living wage.

2.4. The Contractor shall provide the Recovery Works Curriculum based on nine (9)
modules as follows;

2.4.1. Financial Basics and Time Management 101.

2.4.2. Employment Risks to Early Recovery.

2.4.3. Transferable Skills and Resume Development.

2.4.4. Cover Letter and Job Search Strategies.

2.4.5. Computer Skills and Online Job Search Basics.

2.4.6. Interview Skills.

2.4.7. Practice Interviewing with a Positive Attitude.

2.4.8. Recovery Thinking and Workplace Ethics.

2.4.9. Common Work Challenges.

2.5. The Contractor shall Offer individualized trainings to employers and community groups
utilizing curriculum from Recovery Works, which includes, but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Opioids and their effects on the brain.

2.5.2. Stigma.

2.5.3. Stages of Recovery.

2.5.4. Pathways to Recovery.

2.5.5. Resources and Referral.

2.6. The Contractor shall develop a customized plan for each individual, based on the
individual's seven dimensions of wellness of physical, emotional, intellectual, social,
spiritual, environmental and occupational. The Contractor shall:

2.6.1. Screen individuals for strengths and weaknesses, capacity for work and
necessity of work.

2.6.2. Conduct an intake process that shall include, but is not limited to:

2.6.2.1. Interview with a Recovery Coach.

2.6.2.2. Assess the individual's dimensions of wellness.

2.6.2.3. Assess the individual's occupational wellness.

2.6.3. Address barriers to employment with individuals and provide assistance in
overcoming those barriers.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure individuals are enrolled in other services and supports
that aid individuals in recovery who are seeking to enter the workforce for which they
are eligible, as appropriate, including, but not limited to:

Greater Titlon Area Family Resource Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational

Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

Exhibit A

2.7.1. The Community Development Finance Authority Recovery Friendly
Workplace Initiative Program Development Pilot.

2.7.2. The NH Department of Labor National Health Emergency Demonstration
grant for individuals in recovery.

2.7.3. The Governor's Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative.

2.7.4. NH Works.

2.7.5. NH Employment Security.

2.6. The Contractor shall coliaborate with local higher educational and vocational training
institutions in order to provide individuals with vocational training and educational
opportunities in the treatment and/or recovery sen/ice setting, the Contractor shall:

2.8.1. Conduct a comprehensive vocational assessment to determine an
individual's level of skills, strengths, and readiness to seek and enter the
workforce.

2.8.2. Ensure the process is person-centered and based on individual choice and
self-determination.

2.8.3. Utilize the vocational assessment along with the client's Input to design a
vocational plan of action.

2.8.4. Link individuals to the appropriate level of services and resources which
must include, but are not limited to:

2.8.4.1. Resume writing.

2.8.4.2. Job application writing.

2.8.4.3. Improving client-interviewing skills.

2.8.5. Conduct Motivational Interviewing to increase individuals' willingness and
readiness to seek education or employment opportunities.

2.9. The Contractor shall utilize the O'NET OnLine career exploration and job analysis and
the NH Employment Security website to assist participants with:

2.9.1. Planning career goals.

2.9.2. Choosing a training path.

2.9.3. Searching for a new career.

2.10. The Contractor shall ensure individuals are assessed for and receive, as appropriate:

2.10.1. Financial assistance for transportation to classes.

2.10.2. Educational supplies, including but not limited to textbooks, as necessary.

2.10.3. Access to computers and support for electronic job search functions.

2.11. The Contractor shall establish an employment plan for each participant that addresses
'  previous barriers to employment, including but not limited to:

2.11.1. Poor job history.

2.11.2. Substance use disorder impacting performance.

Greater Tillon Area Family Resource Center Exhbil A Contractor 10111313^*^?^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational '

Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

Exhibit A

2.11.3. Criminal background.

2.12. The Contractor shall provide individuals with external employment resources and
assist with gaining access to employment through activities that include, but are not
limited to:

2.12.1. Providing transportation assistance to job fairs.

2.12.2. Providing opportunities to meet with job coaches.

2.12.3. Providing individuals with job-shadowing and internship opportunities.

2.13. The Contractor shall ensure individuals seeking vocational training or career
development education are provided with resources that support those goals.
Including but not limited to:

2.13.1. Training and class stipends.

-2.13.2. Financial aid and grant applications.

2.13.3. Program application submission assistance.

2.14. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative to offer
opportunities for local businesses to engage with potential employees in recovery as
a means to reduce stigma, identify employment opportunities, and increase the
number of businesses identifying as Recovery Friendly.

2.15. The Contractor shall build on current relationships with the local community and
employers as well as outreach to others.

2.16. The Contractor shall develop a community outreach plan using the Recovery Friendly
Workforce Initiative materials and processes with community organizations.

2.17. The Contractor shall provide staff, including a designated program lead, that possess
the expertise and knowledge in providing vocational training to Individuals of special
target populations who experience barriers to employment.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall, on a quarterly basis, track and report Department data
requirements for the programs including, but not limited to:

3.1.1. Number and type of recrujtment activities for Individuals with an opioid use
disorder.

3.1.2. Number of individuals in the program with demographics such as age,
gender, race, and ethnicity.

3.1.3. ' Vocational services provided per individual.

3.1.4. Start date of employment per Individual.

3.1.5. Type of position per individual.

3.1.6. Name of employers per individual.

3.1.7. Length of employment per individual.

3.1.8. Aggregate percentage of individuals employed per month.

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Ceriter Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational

Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

Exhibit A

3.1.9. Number of employers recruited per month.

3.1.10. Types of supports provided to employers to recruit, hire, and retain
individuals in recovery per month.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure ninety percent (90%) of individuals In the program, who
have not attained gainful employment', complete provided training programs.

4.1.1. The Contractor shall report all, If any. exceptions for Individuals who do not
attend available training programs. ^

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of individuals gain
employment.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure contact and coordination with one hundred percent
(100%) of Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative employers.

5. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

5.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded
initiatives, the Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral
agreements with all Regional Hubs for substance use services that comply with all
applicable confidentiality laws, including 42 CPR Part 2.

5.2. The Contractor shall complete client referrals to applicable Regional Hubs for
substance use services within two (2) business days of a client's admission to the
program.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans
associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

5.3.1. If the Contractor is unable to offer services within the required timeframe,
the Contractor shall submit an updated implementation plan to the
Department for approval to outline anticipated service start dates.

5.3.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and liquidate
unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90) days of the
contract effective date.

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials CdO
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational

Training Programs for Individuals with QUO

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8.
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with Federal funds as follows: 100% Federal Funds from the
Substance Abuse and'Mental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93.788, Federal
Award Identification Number (FAIN). TI081685

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-3.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement
for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

4.3.The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to initiate payment.

4.4.The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to Melissa.Girard@dhhs.nh.90v, or invoices may be mailed to:

SOR Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Behavioral Health

129 Pleasant St, 4*^ FL
Concord. NH 03301

8. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A. Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-

Grealer Tillon Area Exhibil B Contractor Initials OOP-.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational

Training Programs for individuals with QUO

Exhibit B

compiiance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the sen/ices
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

10. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Greater Tilton Area Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and. In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and (Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall t>e made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as (he
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sut^Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
pnor to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure (he quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds (he rate charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs; ^
ExWbil C - Spedel Provtslons Conlractor InKials
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
property reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials,-inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^ical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Offtce of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governrnental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review; During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shallnot
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attomey or guardian. ^
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed descriptionof

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall ba in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, (he Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the. Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, thai if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of, the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or ofTtcers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with alt rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://Www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorigin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall appfy to all contracts that exceed Ihe Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees worldng on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(5). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
functlon(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective sutjcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities andreporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance oh an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - special Provisions Contractor Initials
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

tf the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for Improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS; Shall mean those direct and indirect Item's of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursal>le in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal taws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL; If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW; Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deem^ to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibil C - Sp«dai Provisions Contractor Initials
I

oonvis Page 5 of 5 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: DF1DD4BE-496A-419A-95E1^9807F64959C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

REViSiONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4, Conditional Nature of Aoreement. is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. ^

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payments. In whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to wKhhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The Slate shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under (his Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of sen/ices in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the Slate as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department resen/es the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Exhibit CO - Revfslons/Exceptlorts to Standard Contract Language Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Worltplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0: 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN tNDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Pan II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a State
may elect to make one cenificatlon to the Depanment in each federal fiscal year in lieu of cenificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certiHcation or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the woikplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free svorkplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, Slate, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a gpod faith effort to continue to maintain a drug*free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,1.4.1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

5^ 5"-f Tf7A>n fjH o^Si 7 (/p -
Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

fobdi"]
Date' ia CoolC

rCCiS^rtrTitle:
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CERTiFICATiON REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS '

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instmctions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

Date ' Nai<fej^^ dL (}oo\^
I feaQtir^ r
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CERTiFICATiON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative; as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract)i the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to fumish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction." "participant," "persori," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, ̂thout modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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Information of a participant Is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instructions, If a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction. In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or '

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal,.State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, propoised for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded frorrt participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name;

Date ' ohNam
a

Title
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMiNATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH^BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

•WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification; >

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondisciimination requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1960 (42 U.S.C. Section 3709d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discrimlnetlng. either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal-funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the deiivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements:

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

-the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice R^ulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity: Policies'
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equai protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order'No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblow'er protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year '2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

ExhiBiiG
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Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health .and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:

Dat? T*
Trtle: eas^rer'

tmiu
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Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor faciiity owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local govemments. by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient dnjg or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the taw may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certincation;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

(Iks'!I^ ,—__
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Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEf^flENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

\

f- "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^

3/2014 Exhibit! Vendor Inltiala
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the sarhe meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit ,
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (li) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhlbin Vendor Initials dM.
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PH) until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards;

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The'Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 ExHbltl Vondor Initlots QM.
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its ofTices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Cove.red Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request frorh Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days fon^/ard such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible, for so long as Busine^

3/2014 Exhibit 1 Vendor Initials L (3LC-.
Health Insumnco Portebility Act
Business Assodato Agroement

Page 4 of 6 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: DF1DD4BE-496A-419A-95E1-49807F64959C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObtiQatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520.'to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by indivlduais whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under (his Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered-entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a- Definitions and Reoulatorv References. Ail terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule; amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Ruie^.

3/2014 * Exhibil I Vandof Initials I
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e. Seareoatlon. if any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State Name of the Vendor

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Abthojized Represenfative

Title of. Authorized Representative

Date

(36)
esentative Narh^ of Authorized RepreserRepresentative

fCn.^ure,r
Title of Authoripd Representative

Dale ' '
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
0. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS U)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following CertiHcation:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
pf Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and transparency Act.

Vendor Name:

-j. . -
Date * Na

Title, -i-w
} measurer

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Furtdlng Vendor initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the'
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: _/

2. in your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

iX' NO YES

If the answer to ff2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the follov^ng:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If (he answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:.

CU/DHHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certiflcallon Regarding the Federal Funding Vendor Iniilals
Accouniablliiy And Transparency Act IFFATA) Compllonce
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
information, * Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information", or "Confidential Data' means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without'limitatibn. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted-
services • of which collection, disclosure, protectioni, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. UsI update 10/09/16 Exhibit K Contractor inltiais
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mall, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:l9, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in .response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and.must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the intemet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
j hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Sen/ice. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ceriified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile devlce(&) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest antl-vlral, anti-
. hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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Nvhole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-86, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and wilt provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controis to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicabie.

4. The Contractor wili ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidentiai information.

6. If the Contractor will be sul>-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines sp>ecific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor wiil work with the Department to sign and compiy with all applicabie
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization poiicies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements wiil be

.  completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the-Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey/is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vuinerabiiities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey wili be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability, in the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach. ^ ^

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements, applicable to federal agencies, Including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (6 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level arid scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.hlm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the

^ State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes, any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users;

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential information received under this Contract and individuaiiy
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours, as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
.  derivative files containing personally Identifiable information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at ail times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section iV above.

h. in ail other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password)' must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HiPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section Vi.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
' accordance with the agency's documented incident Handling and Breach Notification

procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with ail applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4.^ identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of incidents
and determine risk-based responses to incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. If so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and- contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures-

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer: ^

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.90v
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for
Individuals with CUD Contract

This V Amendment to the Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
ODD contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Granite Pathways, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 10
Ferry Street, Suite 308, Concord, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on SeptembeV 18, 2019, (Item #19), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1,
Revisions/Exceptions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2. Renewal, the Contract may be
amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these sen/ices; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$311,873.48

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 4. Reporting, by adding Subsection 4.2. to read:

4.2. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic surveys,
and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the Department and/or
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA).

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5. Performance Measures, by adding Subsection
5.4. to read:

5.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract management,
improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

5. Modify Exhibit A Scope of Services, Section 6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
to read:

6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

6.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded initiatives,
the Contractor shall ensure each Site:

6.1.1. Establishes formal information sharing and referral agreements with all Doorways
for substance use services that comply with all applicable confidentiality laws,
including 42 CFR Part 2.

f  OS
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6.1.2. Completes client referrals to applicable Doorways for substance use services
within two (2) business days of a client's admission to the program.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date. -

6.3. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract
effective date to review contract implementation.

6.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans
associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

6.5. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all uses of flexible needs funds
and respite shelter funds are in compliance with the Department and SAM MSA
requirements.

6.6. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall assist clients with enrolling in public or
private health insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage and will
have staff trained in Presumptive Eligibility for Medicaid.

6.7. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall accept clients on Medicaid Assisted
Treatment (MAT) and facilitate access to MAT on-site or through referral for all clients
supported with SOR grant funds, as clinically appropriate.

6.8. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White
HIV/AIDs program for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

6.9. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all clients are regularly
screened for tobacco use, treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part of
treatment planning.

6.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply with all
appropriate Department, State of NH. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration SAMHSA, and other Federal terms, conditions, and requirement.

6.11. The Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may not be used,
directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or treatment using
marijuana. The Contractor agrees that;

6.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (OUD).

6.11.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual who or organization that
provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or
mental disorders. '•

6.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

6.11.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.

6.11.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the Department within
thirty (30) days of contract approval.

6.12. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but not
limited to:

6.12.1. Invoicing:

Granite Pathways Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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6.12.2. Funding restrictions; and

6.12.3. Billing.

6. Modify Exhibit 8, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit B Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, in order to bring
payment terms into compliance with current Department of Administrative Services Manual of
Procedures standards, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibit B-1, Budget Form by reducing the total budget amount by $77,213, which is
Identified as unspent funding of which $43,852 is being carried forward to fund the activities in this
Agreement for SFY 21 {September 30. 2020 through December i31, 2020), as specified in Exhibit
B-3 Amendment #1 NCE and for SFY 21 (January 1, 2021 through June 30, 2021) in the amount
of $33.361. as specified in Exhibit B-4 Amendment # 1 SOR II.

8. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1 NCE. which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibit 8-4 Amendment #1 SOR II. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 SOR II, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

08

A/S
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and

effect. This amendment shall be effective September 30, 2020, upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/19/2021

Date

—OocuSignad by:

fwt

>ox

Title: Di rector

GRANITE PATHWAYS

1/6/2021

Date

~~*OocuSlgn«d by;

— 4980F2A944D04Ce...

Name: Kenneth Brezenoff

"  General counsel

Granite Pathways
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1/26/2021

*~OocuSigntd by:

Date Name:Catherine Pmps

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Granite Pathways Amendment #1
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as awarded on 09/30/2018,

by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental

Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and as awarded

on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Substance

Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement: '

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient in accordance with 2

CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR

§200.87.

2.3. . The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the

fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as

specified in Exhibit B-1, Budget Form through Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 SOR II.

4. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows:

.  4.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other payor sources.

4.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

4.3. ■ Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows:

4.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization

(MCQ), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract with the

MCO.

4.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the

Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

4.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale

Program.

4.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,

charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth {15th)

working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for

litials IGranile Pathways Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall enisure the invoice is

'  completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices shall

be net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this agreement.

The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for

wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries

and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work

performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time, tracking templates, which are available to the

Department upon request.

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported:

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide

marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally

unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference

grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the

FOA. Grant funds may be used for light snacks, not to

exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report. /—

Granite Pathways Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

RFP.2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A01 Page 2 of 4 Date 1/19/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittarice Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon

request.

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on

third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

6. The Contractor is responsible for. reviewing, understanding, and complying with further
restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).

7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to

melissa.glrard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

SOR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

8. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of the

last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

9. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each

invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

10. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract

completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A-Amendment #3, Scope of Services, in

compliance with funding requirements.

12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part

in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A, Amendment #3,

Scope of Services, including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports.

13. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting

amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years

and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both

parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed'and

justified.

14. Audits

,  08

Granite Pathways Exhibit B Amerxjment #1 Contractor Initials 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

14.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the

following conditions exist:

14.1.1.Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds

received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most recently
completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of
NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of

$1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and
Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by
an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days

after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the,

requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial

audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the

Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the'

Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source, may be

required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed by an

independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the

Contractor is high-risk.

14.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is

understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for

any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments

made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been

disallowed because of such an exception.

"Granite Pathways Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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ExMbH Amendment f1 MCE

New Hampshire Department of Health arxl Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contrsctgr Nam*; CtanK* Pathway*

Bwdgal Raquaat (or Werkforea Rvadbta** S Vocational Training Programs for IneMduat* with OUO
iVP-ioiseDAa-tMvoiwtor

Budgal Partod: SFY2I 09/30120-12/31120 (NCE)

Total Program Co*l Contractor Shara I Match

Ifxflract

Furxiad by DHHS contract »hara

1. Total SalaryWaoea

2, Emplovaa Batteto

3. Conaultanis

4. Equlpmani:

S. SuppMa*:

6. Tiaval

7. Occupancy

fl. Corranl Ejtpan»aa

9. Softawa

10. MarkatTKi/Coniniunieatierw

11. Slaff Education and Training
12. Suttconlracts/Aqraamanta
13. Othar (»paciticdatalb martdalory):

Indltaci Aa A Parcant of Ok ad 3,W6.S5

iS.UiU T53sar S.9S6.SS39.S&S.4S

Indkaet As A Parcant of Dkact

Grartlta PBdiwaya
RFP-2010-BOAS-12-WORKF-01-A01

ExMbIt e-3 Amandmant «1 NCE

Pagalo/l

— DS

A/S
Conhsclor Inlltall

Dma 1/19/2021
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ExhUt 0-4 Aiiitxlnt»n< II SOR ■

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Natno: Orantta Pathwaya

Budgat Raqoaat for: WorMorca Raadnaaa & Vocational Training Program* lor Individual* with DUO
RFP-2(i)Mcas-r;-naw«t

Budgal Pariod: SFY21 oiromi-oenoni (SORII)

Total l>r Coal Contractor Shara I Match

LIna llam

ojwn
Indbact

1, Total Salaryvvapaa

2. Emoloiwa Bar>a6ta

3. Conauttartta

4. Equipmani:

S. Stipptle*:

6, traval
7, Oceupar>ev

a. Currant E*oan*a*

9. Seflwata

10. MarfcaflnalComnxmleatlert*

11. StaH Education arxl Ttaininq
12. SutroontiBCta/AoraanKnta

13. Othar (»pac1lie <laui4» marwIaio'Y):

IndiracI A* A Parcanl of Diract

■5S55TTT Tssm I9.090.9C
Indhaet A* A Parcant of Diract

Granito Padiwaw
RFP.2O19-eOAS-12-WORKF41.A01
Erhlbil 0-4 Amandmant «1 SOR H
Pago 1 oil

Contractor Initial*

r"
1/19/2021
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ExMbH 8>S Ain*ndm*itl t1 SCR I

New Hampshire Oepartmenl of Health and Humart Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Nafna; Cranll* Pathways

Bude*! Raquost for; Workferes Raadbtass & Vocational Training Programs lor Indlviduata with OUO
nFP.»iM(M»t?-wor»(F«T

Btidgsl Psriod; SFY22O7/0tni-O9r29l21 (SORR)

Total'^rp Cost Contractor Shars I Match Fundsd by OHMS contract sharagr am

Indiroct

1, Total SalaryAVaoos

2, Empteteo Batwiits

3. ConsuRams

4. Eoutpmant:

Rantal

Rapait and Matitanartco

Purehasa/Popraoation

5- Sopptiaa:

Educatiortal

Lab

_Rtannac^

Offiea

6. Tcaval

Oeeupaney 3,000.00

8- Cunant Etpansaa

Talaphona

Postaga

Sut)seftpllons

Ajda and Lagal
Insuranco

_Bomd_£xgena«^
Soflwata

10. MarliotirKtfCommunieatlorts

It. Stall Educalloo ar»d Trainirtg

12. Suboootfacls/AoraarTiants

13. Othar (spadlic dalaas mandaloiy):
Indirsct As A Parcanl ol Oiract

U.UA.U Tsnr U.W.U I45.4S4.SS

Indirsct As A Parcont ol Dkaet

Grartlla Pathway*
RFP-2019-BOAS.12-WOftKF-01-A01

Exhibit B-S AmandmanI in SOR II

Pag* 1 of 1

Conbaclor Initiab.

1

— OS

71572021
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITE PATHWAYS is
a New Hampshire Nonprofit Coiporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 08, 2009. I farther certify that
all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Slate's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is
concerned.

Business ID: 613581

Certificate Number: 0005042010

o

Urn

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 12th day of November A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. William Rider, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of Granite Pathways.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken via email with the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on January 7. 2021, at.which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders willing voted to approve, DHHS Contract
RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A01 Workforce Readiness..

VOTED: That Kenneth Brezenoff, General Counsel, is duly authorized on behalf of Granite Pathways, LLC to
enter Into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and
further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments,
revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of
this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this.certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: January S''', 2021
Signafure of Elected Officer
Name: William Rider

Title: Interim BOD Director

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD,. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

12/10/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ie8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER '

US! Insurance Services LLC

333 Westchester Ave, Suite 102

White Piains, NY 10604

914 459-6200

Carolyn DiMarco

rKo.E.,i: 914 459-6200 r>uc.No); 610 537-4220
ADDRESS; Carolyn.Dimarco@usi.eom

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A Berkshire Hathaway Specialty Ins Co. 22276

INSURED

Granite Pathways, Inc.

633 3rd Avenue, 6th Floor

New York. NY 10017-6943

INSURERS Berkshire Hathaway Homestate Ins. Co. 20044

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL
INSR

SUBR
wvn POLICY NUMBER

POUCY EFF
(MM/^/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/bo/YYYY) LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

E 1 X| OCCUR
47SPK25564205 39/30/2020 09/30/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC $1,000,000

MED EXP (Any one person) $25,000

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY $1,000,000

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000-

POLICY 1 1 JECT 1 1 LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS ■ COMP/OP AGG $3,000,000

$

A

A

AUTOMOBILE LIABILfTY 47SMA14808006

MA only

47RWS14808206

Ail other states

39/30/2020

39/30/2020

09/30/2021

09/30/2021

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accideni) si ,000,000

X ANY AUTO

HEDULED
rros
N-OWNED
rros ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

X
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

sc
Al

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)' $

X X
NC,

At
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddeol) $

$

A X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

47SUM14808306 39/30/2020 09/30/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE $25,000,000

AGGREGATE $25,000,000

OED X RETENTION si 0000 $

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
/LND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y, ̂
ANY PR0PR1ET0R4'ARTNER«XECUTIVE| 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

FEWC115677

(Exci NY & TX)

12/11/2020 12/11/2021 V PER OTH-
A RTATlfTF ER

E.L- EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L- DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

A

A

Professional Liab

Sexual Abuse/Moi

47SPK25564205

47SPK25564205

39/30/2020

09/30/2020

09/30/2021

09/30/2021

$1M per occ/$3M Agg

$1M per occ/$3M Agg

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Remarlit SchtduU, may ba attached if more apace la required)

Evidence of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New

Hampshire,Department of Health

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord, NH 03301

1
DM JiceSt-

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S30599844/M30597832

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
AXYZP
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MISSION STATEMENT

Our mission is to support individuals with substance use disorders and
mental illness in achieving their life goals as valued members of their
community.

Granite Pathways develops innovative, and sustainable solutions that are
changing people's lives'.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Together with Report of Independent
Certified Public Accountants

The FEDCAP Group

September 30, 2019 and 2018
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Grant Thornton

GRANT THORNTON LLP

757 TNfO Ave.. 8m Floor

Now Y<*KNY

10017-2013

O 212 398 0100

P 212 370 4520

8  imkd.tVgnntoiomionus

twioer.conVgranitnomtonus

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of, Directors of

The FEDCAP Group:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The
FEDCAP Group (collectively, "FEDCAP"). which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as of September 30. 2019 and 2018, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements
Management" is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with

auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to FEDCAP's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of FEDCAP's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

GT.COM Grant Thormon LLP Is (h« U.S. m«mt>ar rrm o( Grant Thornton Intamationa! Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and each o' Its member firms
are separate legal eniltles artd are not a worldwide partnership.
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Grant Thornton

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The FEDCAP Group as of
September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other matters

Supplementary information
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary
information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures. These additional procedures included comparing
and reconciling the information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the supplertientary information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

New York, New York

August 14. 2020
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The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of September 30,

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of

approximately $2,180,057 in 2019 and $4,622,800 in 2018)
Contributions and grants receivable (net of allowance for

uncollectible contributions of approximately $250,000 in 2019
and 2018)

Inventories, net ̂

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total current assets

Investments

Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment, net

Art objects t

Beneficial interest in trusts

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Deferred revenues

Advances from government agency
Current portion of revolving loans

Current portion of obligation under capital leases
-  Notes payable, current

Total current liabilities

Capital lease obligation

Notes payable

Revolving loan

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

Without donor restrictions • non-controlling interest
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2019 2018

$ 9.821,462 $ 10,814,947

54,652,438 44,128,183

4.352,341 1,296,528

111,693 244,690

8,655,835 9,413,702

77,593,769 65,898,050

8,703,912 18,227,270

761.776 -

86,739,150 82,070,717

43,950 43,950

4,512,345 4,646,739

434,112 1,135,754

101,195,245 106,124,430

■ $ 178,789,014 $ 172,022,480

$ 39,601,357 $ 37,108,748

1,772,430 4.129,907

433,397 1,485,361

3,000,000 17,853,273

2,155,006 1,944,244

1,117,418 1,099,081

48,079.608 63,620,614

34,773.486 35,351,613

30,368,846 31,337,292

23,653,273 -

4,274,856 4,670,840

141,150,069 134,980.359

29,006,372 28,407,688

133,033 -

8,499,540 8,634,433

37,638,945 37,042,121

s 178,789,014 $ 172,022,480

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

3
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The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the years ended September 30,

2019 2018

Without Donor With Donor Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total

Revenues

Contract services and products $  117,957.318 $ $  117,957.318 $  107,418,632 $ $  107,418.632

Rehabilitation and vocational programs 157,515,208 - 157.515,208 154,317,661 . 154.317,661

Contributions and grants 19,615,745 25,000 19,640,745 22.664.418 50,000 22,714,418
Inherent contribution 4,771,572 - 4.771.572 4.841,419 8.621,011"- 13.462,430

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments 23,299 (15.139) 8,160 554.658 - 554,658

Interest income 757,089 - 757,089 347,997 -  • 347,997

Miscellaneous revenue 231,885 - 231,885 484,910 - 484.910

Net assets released from restrictions 144,754 . (144,754) - 2,845,544 (2,845,544) .

Total revenues 301,016.870 (134,893) 300,881,977 293,475,239 5,825,467 299,300,706

Expenses

Program services:

Contract services and products 105.974.532 - 105,974,532 94,956,101 - 94,956,101

Rehabilitation and vocational programs 151,992,240 - 151,992,240 161,461,598 - 161,461,598

257,966,772 257,966,772 256,417,699 - 256,417.699

Supporting services: •

Management and general 38.307.140 - 38,307,140 39.594,457 - 39,594,457

Development 4.011.241 - 4,011,241 1,865,951 - 1,865,951

42,318.381 . 42,318,381 41,460,408 . 41,460,408

Total expenses 300.285.153 - 300,285,153 297.878,107 . 297,878,107

Change in net assets 731,717 (134,893) 596,824 (4,402,868) 5,825,467 1,422,599

Net assets at beginning of year 28.407,688 8,634,433 37,042,121 32,810,556 2,808,966 35,619,522

Net assets at end of year S  29,139,405 $  8.499.540 $  37,638,945 $  28.407,688 $  8,634,433 $  37,042,121

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 38A62ACF-40E8-44F6-8CB4-923050DC069B

The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the year ended September 30,2019

Program Services Supporting Services

Salaries and related expertses

Professional fees

Professional development and evaluation

Materials ar>d supplies

Commissions

Telephone

Postage and shipping

Insurance

Occupancy costs

Equipment rental and maintenance

Equipment purchases

Client transportation and travel

Subscription ar>d printing

Technology

Interest expense and bank charges

Bad debt provision

Subcontractor expense

Stipends

Security guard expense

Other

Total expenses tjefore depredation and amortization

Depredation and amortization

Total expenses

Contract Rehabilitation

Services and and Vocational Management . Total

Products Programs Total and General Development Total Expenses

$  75.112.041 S  92,028,205 $  167,140.246 S  13.482.595 $  1.321,359 $  14.803,954 S  181.944,200

190.014 16,794,601 16,984.615 4.155.799 773.764 4,929.563 21,914.178

52.176 760,002 812.178 486.894 8.354 495,248 1,307.426

. 4.608,212 2.294.309 6,902,521 272.753 21,424 294.177 7,196,698

2.983,026 4.969 2,987.995 - - - 2,987,995

190.887 850,894 1,041,781 714.266 16,490 730,756 1,772,537

127.982 200,267 328.249 31.436 6.129 37.565 365.814

1,170,764 957,823 2,128,587 1.049.952 14,847 1,064.799 3,193,386

2.789,676 13,459,134 16.248,810 2.010.115 136.043 2,146.158 18,394.968

1,190,342 759,425 1,949,767 311.275 42.037 353,312 2,303,079

312.686 113,267 425,953 56.833 5.761 62.594 488.547

355.593 3,537.161 3,892,754 843.055 130.157 973.212 4,865,966

85,901 297,125 383.026 596.854 23.194 620,048 1,003,074

422.832 1.584.234 2,007,066 3.057.023 82.864 . 3,139.887 5,146,953

137.624 68.466 206,090 5.347,044 34,665 5.381.709 5.587,799

. 55.371 55,371 9.771 - 9.771 65.142

15,701.994 9.751.574 25.453,568 1.492,608 130.670 1,623.278 27,076.846

24,586 4,730.195 •  4,754,781 80,113 1.338 81.451 4,836,232

1,672 604.506 606,178 55,127 272 55.399 661.577

173.575 2.160.645 2,334,220 605.829 1.255,001 1,660.830 4,195,050

105,631,583 151,012.173 256,643,756 34.659.342 4.004,369 38,663,711 295.307.467

342.949 980,067 1,323,016 3.647.798 6.872 3.654.670 4,977,686

S  105.974,532 S  151.992.240 $ 257,966,772 S  38.307.140 $  4.011.241 $  42.318,381 S 300.285.153

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 38A62ACF-40E8-44F6-8CB4-923050DC069B

The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the year ended September 30, 2018

Program Services Supporting Services

Contract Rehabilitation

Services and and Vocational Management Total

Products Programs Total and General Development Total Expenses

Salaries and related expenses S  64.831,121 S  87,171,397 $ 152,002.518 $  18,061,071 6 543,763 S  18,604,834 S  170,607,352

Professional fees 113.423 25,140,718 25,254,141 2.759,130 420,672 3,179.802 28.433.943

Professional development and evaluation 52.094 747,241 799,335 132,123 4,025 136,148 935,463

Materials and supplies 3.608.680 1,797,653 5,406,333 210.071 18,540 228,611 5,634,944

Commissions 2.656.552 11,500 2.668,052 . - . 2,668,052

Tdephone 174,268 911,010 1,085,278 574,671 7,514 582,185 1,667,463

Postage and shipping 760,678 243,769 1,004,447 78,091 3,626 81,717 1,086,164

Insurance 1.373.800 1.283,658 2,657,458 664.319 6,609 672,928 3,330,386

Occupancy costs 2.427,298 14.728,399 17,155,697 2,167,689 39,011 2,206,700 19,362,397

Equipment rental and maintenance 835,996 610,584 1,446,580 251,619 9,045 260,664 1,707,244

Equipment purchases 340,665 460.452 801,117 23,478 726 24,204 825,321

Client transportation and travel 336,303 4.382,234 4,718,537 659,059 60,186 719,245 5,437,782

Subscription and printing 25,142 108.809 133.951 88,013 9,997 98,010 231,961

Technology 453.739 1,700.845 2,154,584 2,062.536 48,820 2,111,358 4,265,942

Interest expense and bank charges 49 37,509 37,558 3.528,905 260 3,529.165 3,566,723

Bad debt provision - 10,877 10,877 4.589,854 250,000 4,839.654 4,850,731

Subcontractor expense 15.845.823 13,440,507 29,286,330 167,236 . 167,236 29,453,566

Stipends 32.225 4,396,280 4,428,505 50,720 5.056 55,776 4,484,281

Security guard expense 17.820 1,016,874 1,034,694 16,075 13 16,088 1,050,782

Other 814,148 2,372,594 3,186,742 223,719 435.126 658,845 3,845,587

Total expenses before depreciation and amortization 94,699,624 160,572.910 255,272,734 36,308,381 1,864,989 38,173,370 293,446,104

Depreciation and amortization 256,277 888,688 1,144,965 3,286.076 962 3,287,038 4,432.003

Total expenses $  94,956.101 $  161,461,598 S 256,417,699 S  39.594,457 S 1,865,951 S  41.460.408 6 297,878,107

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 38A62ACF-40E8-44F6-8CB4-923050DC069B

The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH PLOWS

For the years ended September 30,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash used in

operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

Bad debt provision

Inherent contribution

Realized and unrealized gains on investments

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Contribution receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Beneficial interest in trusts

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Deferred revenue

Other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchase of investments

Cash received in acquisitions, net of cash paid in consideration

Capital expenditures

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Decrease in advances from government agency

Change In revolving loans

Proceeds from notes payable

Repayment of notes payable

Repayment of capital lease obligations
Net cash provided by financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Beginning of year

End of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow Information:
Cash interest paid during the year

Fixed assets acquired through capital lease

2019 2018

S  596.824 $  1.422,599

4,977.686 .4,432,003

65.142 4.850.731

.  (4.771.572) (13.462,430)

(8.160) (554.658)

(9.347.783) (3.281.883)

(3.004.961) 2.318.436

133.256 157.979

,1.612.193 (3.883.995)

134.394 6,363

903.268 2.785.750,

(2.392.733) (934,386)

(393.777) 614,594

(11.496,223) (5.528.897)

19.000.000 43.028

(9.468.482) (2.446,391)

355.904 906,169

(5.543.024) (4,542.620)

4.344.398 (6.039,814)

(1.051.964) (14,639)

8.800.000 (249,000)

- 9.564.622

(1.220.124) (982,488)

(369.572) (287,862)

6.158,340 8,030.633

(993,485) (3,538:078)

10.814,947 14,353.025

S  9.821.462 S 10.814.947

3,053,771 S  1.834.062

$  1.044.131

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope 10: 38A62ACF-40E8-44F6-8Ce4-923050DC069B

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

The FEDCAP Group, Inc. (the "Parent"), established on October 1, 2018, is a private, nonprofit organization
incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. The Parent is exempt from federal Income taxes
under Section 501(c)(3) of. the Internal Revenue Code. On July 24, 2019, the Parent became the sole
member of the following affiliates: Fedcap, Inc ("Fed Inc."), Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc ("FRS"),
Wildcat Services Corporation ("Wildcat"), ReServe Elder Services, Inc. ("ReServe"), Community
Workshops, Inc. ("CWS"), Easter Seals New York, Inc. ("ESNY"), 1184 Deer Park Ave., Inc. ("1184" or "Red
Mango"), Granite Pathways, Inc ("GP"), Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc ("ESRI"), Seacoast Pathways, Inc.
("Seacoast"), Single Stop USA Inc. ("SGST"), Benevolent, MVLE, Easter Seals Central Texas ("ESCT"),
Easter Seals North Texas ("ESNT) and Fedcap UK. The Parent and Its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as "FEDCAP."

Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc ("FRS") is a private, nonprofit organization incorporated under the laws
of New York State. FRS is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. FRS was the sole member of the above named subsidiaries through July 23, 2019, at
which point the Parent became the sole corporate member.

FRS was founded to provide a comprehensive range of vocational and related services to individuals with
disabilities, and other work-related disadvantages, who face significant barriers to employrnent. FRS's goal
is to help each person achieve independence, integration into the community and full participation in the
economic mainstream.

FRS provides contract services and products within custodial, homecare, office services, and industrial
divisions. The primary customers in these divisions are federal, and New York State and City agencies and
certified home health agencies.

As part of FRS's rehabilitation and vocation programs, FRS provides vocational evaluations, training, and
employment services and other government-funded employment and job search programs. Evaluations
combine aptitude tests, computerized assessments, and vocational counseling. After evaluation, FRS
offers training in mail clerk/messenger services, building/custodial services, culinary arts/food services,
data entry, office skills, document imaging, hospitality operations, and security operations. FRS then seeks
to employ individuals who have successfully completed FRS's rehabilitation and vocational programs. FRS
also offers the Chelton Loft, a voluntary clubhouse program for people with a history of serious mental
illness. FRS also has a vocational education program and a licensed mental health program.

Wildcat Services Corporation ("Wildcat") is a nonprofit entity that is located in New York City and provides
employment training, jobs placement and "supportive employment" opportunities for individuals with
barriers to employment.

ReServe Elder Service, Inc. ("ReServe") is a nonprofit entity located in New York City that matches
continuing professionals age55+ with organizations that need their expertise. Reserve provides direct
services, administrative support, and capacity-building expertise in schools, social service agencies,
cultural institutions, and public agencies.

Community Workshops, Inc. (d/b/a Community Work Services) ("CWS") is a nonprofit corporation located
in Boston, Massachusetts, whose mission is to help people who have barriers to work obtain employment
and achieve greater self-sufficiency through job training, placement, and support services.

Easter Seals New York, Inc. ("ESNY") is a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to provide programs and
services for people with disabilities, assistance to people with disabilities and their families, assistance to
communities in developing necessary and appropriate resources for residents, and a climate of acceptance
for people with disabilities which will enable them to contribute to the well-being of the community.



DocuSign Envelope ID; 38A62ACF-40E8-44F6-8CB4-923050DC0698

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

On May 1,2016, ESNY received a contribution in the form of a Red Mango franchise, incorporated as 1184
Deer Park Ave., Inc. ("1184" or "Red Mango"). 1184 was incorporated as a for profit corporation, operating
as a social enterprise which includes a training center and employment opportunities for veterans. 1184
ceased operations as of September 6, 2019. The loss related to these operations did not significantly
impact operating results for fiscal 2019.

Granite Pathways, Inc. ("GP") is a nonprofit entity whose mission is to provide services to empower and.
support adults with mental illness to pursue their personal goals through education, employment, stable
housing, and meaningful relationships.

Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc. ("ESRI") is a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to provide services to ensure
that all people with disabilities or special needs and their families have equal opportunities to live, learn,
work and play in their communities.

Seacoast Pathways, Inc ("Seacoast") is a nonprofit entity whose mission is to support adults living with
mental illness on their paths to recovery through the work-ordered day.

Single Stop USA Inc. ("SGST") is a nonprofit entity that provides coordinated services to holistically connect
people to the resources they need to attain higher education, obtain good jobs, and achieve financial self-
sufficiency.

Benevolent is a nonprofit entity that provides economic wellbeing to individuals and families in need,
through non-government sources.

MVLE is a nonprofit entity that provides employment, support and rehabilitation services to individuals with
disabilities in the Northern Virginia and Washington, D.C. area. ,

Redcap, Inc. ("Fed Inc.") was established as a private, nonprofit organizations under the laws of the State
of Delaware. Fed, Inc. was formed to provide workforce development opportunities for people who face
barriers to economic well-being.

Easter Seals Central Texas ("ESCT") provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life
cycle through outpatient medical rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and
integration programs in the Central Texas region.

Easter Seals North Texas ("ESNT") provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle
through outpatient medical rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration
programs in the North Texas region.

On November 7, 2018, Redcap UK was established and was registered as a UK Charity. Redcap UK was
founded to allow for the advancement of social inclusion, by enabling economic independence, employment
and opportunity to participate in society for socially and economically disadvantaged and disabled
individuals through various workforce and economic development, educational and occupational health
initiatives.

On December 3, 2018, Redcap UK acquired Kennedy Scott, Limited (KS), a United Kingdom company
through a stock purchase. Kennedy Scott provides high quality job support, placement, retention and
related services to people in the United Kingdom.

On February 22, 2019, Redcap Employment Limited ("RED") was established under the laws of the United
Kingdom. Redcap Employment Limited delivers employability solutions across the United Kingdom to build
communities through a blend of local frontline professional teams and like-minded supply chain partners.



DocuSign Envelope 10: 38A62ACF-40E8-44F6.8CB4-923050DC069B

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

On March 1, 2019, Fedcap Employrnent Scotland Limited ("FES") was established under the laws of
Scotland in the United Kingdom. Fedcap Employment Limited delivers employability solutions across
Scotland to build communities through a blend of local frontline professional tearns and like-minded supply
chain partners.

On March 14, 2019, FES became a majority shareholder of Start Scotland Limited ("SS"). SS is a value-
driven organization that strives to put its customers first, understanding their needs and closely engaging
with them on a personal level to help them on their journey to employment and training.

On September 30, 2019. ESNY acquired and became the sole member of These Our Treasures, Inc.
("TOTS"), a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to educate young children with developmental disabilities in
an atmosphere that embraces and accommodates individual differences and helps children to achieve in
the context of the larger classroom and school setting.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of FEDCAP have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("US GAAR") using the accrual
basis of accounting. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB")'issued Accounting Standards Update
("ASU") No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-
profit Entities ("ASU 2016-14"). The ASU amends the current reporting model for not-for-profit
organizations and requires certain additional disclosures. The significant changes include:

Requiring the presentation of two net asset classes classified as "net assets without donor
restrictions" and "net assets with donor restrictions";

Modifying the presentation of underwater endowment funds and related disclosures;

Requiring the use of the placed in-service approach to recognize the satisfaction of restrictions on
gifts used to acquire or construct long-lived assets, absent explicit donor stipulations otherwise;

Requiring that all not-for-profits present an analysis of expenses by function and nature in a
separate statement or in the notes to the financial statements;

Requiring disclosure of quantitative and qualitative information regarding liquidity;

Presenting investment return net of external and direct internal investment expenses; and,

Modifying other financial statement reporting requirements and disclosures, intended to increase
the usefulness to the reader.
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DocuSign Envelope 10: 38A62ACF-40E8-44F6-8CB4.923050DC0698

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

For the year ended September 30, 2019, FEDCAP adopted the relevant provisions of ASU 2016-14 and
similarly revised the presentation of its fiscal 2018 consolidated financial statements to align with the new
reporting presentation. A presentation of net assets as previously reported as of September 30, 2018, and
as required under ASU 2016-14 follows;

September 30, 2018
Presentation under ASU 2016-14

As previously
presented

Without donor

restrictions

With donor

restrictions Total

Net assets:

Unrestricted $ 28,407.688 $ 28,407,688 $ $  28,407,688
Temporarily restricted 6,678,580 - 6,678,580 6,678,580

Permanently restricted 1,955,853 - 1,955,853 1,955,853

Total net assets $ 37,042,121 $ 28,407,688 $  8,634,433 $ 37,042,121

FEDCAP classifies its net assets in the following categories:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions '

Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations and are, therefore, available for the
general operations of FEDCAP. Net assets without donor restrictions may also be designated for
specific purposes by FEDCAP's Board of Directors or may be limited by legal requirements or
contractual agreements with outside parties.

Net assets without donor restrictions also includes the portion of net assets in a consolidated
subsidiary owned by non-controlling investors and are reflected on the consolidated statements of
financial position as net assets without donor restrictions - non-controlling interests.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Represent net assets which are subject to donor-imposed restrictions whose use is restricted by
time and/or purpose. Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor-imposed restrictions
that require FEDCAP to use or expend the gifts as specified, based on purpose or passage of time.
When donor restrictions expire, that is, when a purpose restriction is fulfilled or a time restriction
ends, such net assets are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported on the
accompanying consolidated statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Contributions with donor-imposed restrictions whose restrictions are met during the same fiscal
year in which the contribution was recognized are presented as contribution revenues without donor
restrictions on the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.

Net assets with donor restrictions also includes the corpus of gifts, which must be maintained in
perpetuity, but allow for the expenditure of net investment income and gains earned on the corpus
for either specified or unspecified purposes in accordance with donor stipulations.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 38A62ACF-40E8-44F6.8CB4.923050DC0698

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions and the non-controlling interest in Start Scotland Limited
during the year ended September 30, 2019 is summarized below:

Total

Without

Donor Without Donor Non-controlling
Restrictions Restrictions Interest

Balance, September 30, 2018 $ 28,407,688 $ 28,407,688 $

Inherent contribution from acquisition of Start
Scotland Limited

Change in net assets from operations
381,450
.350,267

194,540
'404,144

186,910
(53,877)

Change in net assets 731,717 598,684 133,033

Balance, September 30, 2019 $ 29,139,405 $ 29,006,372 $ 133,033

Cash Equivalents

FEDCAP considers all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the date of
purchase, including investments in short-term certificates of deposit and certain money market funds, to be
cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers ("ASC 606"), FEDCAP recognizes revenue when control of the promised goods or services
are transferred to FEDCAP's clients or outside parties in an amount that reflects the consideration FEDCAP
expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. The standard outlines a five-step model
whereby revenue is recognized as performance obligations within a contract are satisfied.

ASC 606 also requires new and expanded disclosures regarding revenue recognition to ensure an
understanding as to the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers. FEDCAP has identified contract services and products revenues and
rehabilitation and vocational program revenues as revenue categories subject to the adoption of ASC
606. FEDCAP recognizes revenues from contracts with customers, as goods or services are transferred
or provided in accordance with ASC 606.

The results of applying ASC 606 using the modified retrospective approach did not have a material impact
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements or the business.processes, controls or systems of
FEDCAP.

Payments received for in advance of FEDCAP satisfying its performance obligations are recorded within
deferred revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position ($111,439 and
$397,579, as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively). The changes in deferred revenue were
caused by normal timing differences between the satisfaction of performance obligations and customer
payments.

12



DocuSign Envelope ID; 38A62ACF-40E8-44F6-8CB4-923050DC069B

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

FEDCAP's contracts with customers generally contain terms that are less than one year. Accordingly.
FEDCAP elected the practical expedients under ASC 606 to not assess whether a contract has a significant
financing component or disclose the information regarding the remaining performance obligations for
contracts with customers.

FEDCAP's revenue primarily relates to contract services and products, and rehabilitation and vocational
programs. Revenue recognition for these various revenue streams is at the point in time coinciding with
the completion of the corresponding performance obligations to customers.

I

Contract Services and Products

FEDCAP's contract services and products revenue includes HomeCare services, facility services,
and other cost recovery contracts. FEDCAP recognizes such revenue ratably over a contract's
term for those with fixed rates as the performance obligations are fulfilled accordingly over the
corresponding contract term. For performance-based contracts, revenues are recognized in the
period when related expenditures have been incurred, milestones have been achieved, or services
have been performed in compliance with the respective contracts, which are the performance
obligations under the contracts. FEDCAP also generates revenue from the sale of related products,
which is recognized at the time of shipment.

Rehabilitation and Vocational Programs

FEDCAP's rehabilitation and vocational program revenue Includes medical services, tuition and job
training. FEDCAP recognizes such revenue ratably over a contract's term for those with fixed rates
as the performance obligations are fulfilled accordingly over the corresponding contract term. For
performance-based contracts, revenues are recognized in the period when related expenditures
have been incurred, milestones have been achieved, or services have been performed in
compliance with the respective contracts, which are the performance obligations under the
contracts. FEDCAP also generates revenue from the sale of related products, which is recognized
at the time of shiprnent.

Contribution and Grant Revenue

FEDCAP records contributions of cash and other assets when an unconditional promise to give such assets
is received from a donor. Contributions are recorded at the fair value of the assets received and

contributions with donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets are classified as net assets with
donor restrictions. Contributions with donor restrictions that are received and met In the same fiscal year
are recorded as contribution revenues without donor restrictions. Otherwise, once stipulated time
restrictions end or purpose restrictions are accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified
to net assets without donor restrictions as "net assets released from restrictions" in the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities. Conditional contributions are recognized as revenue when the
conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Conditional contributions received in advance of
meeting the associated contributions are recorded as deferred revenue on the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position ($1,656,416 and $3,732,328, as of September 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively). There were no outstanding conditional contributions yet to be received as of September 30,
2019 or 2018.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

FEDCAP recognizes revenue from contributions, grants and contracts in accordance with Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 20.18-08, Not-For-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and the
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. Accordingly, FEDCAP evaluates
whether a transfer of assets is (1) an exchange transaction in which a resource provider is receiving
commensurate value in return for the resources transferred or (2) a contribution. If the transfer of.assets is
determined to be an exchange transaction, FEDCAP applies guidance under ASC 606. If the transfer of
assets is determined to be a contribution, FEDCAP evaluates whether the contribution is conditional based
upon whether the agreement includes both (1) one or more barriers that must be overcome before FEDCAP
is entitled to the assets transferred and promised and (2) a right of return of assets transferred or a right of
release of a promisor's obligation to transfer assets.

Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are derived from contract services and products, and rehabilitation and vocational
programs. The carrying value of contributions and grants and accounts receivable are reduced by an
appropriate allowance for uncollectible accounts, and therefore approximates net realizable value.
FEDCAP determines its allowance by considering a number of factors, including the length of time
receivables are past due, FEDCAP's previous loss history, the donor's current ability to pay its obligation,
and the condition of the general economy and the industry as a whole. Receivables outstanding longer
than the payment terms are considered past due. FEDCAP writes off accounts receivable when they
become uncollectible, and payments subsequently received on such receivables are recorded as income
in the period received,

Inventories

Inventories, mainly consisting of distress marker light products and related components, are valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined principally by the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets purchased for a value greater than $5,000 and with depreciable lives greater than one year
are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life
of the respective asset and ranges from 3 to 40 years.. Significant additions or improvements extending
asset lives are capitalized; normal maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Leasehold
improvements are amortized based on the lesser of the estimated useful life or remaining lease term.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities. The classification is based on the function
and nature of expenses directly used in the program. Common expenses are allocated to the programs
and supporting services based on the benefit derived. The methods used for the allocation include square
footage and actual percentage of time dedicated to the program or supporting service.

Commissions

FEDCAP pays commissions to an unrelated not-for-profit entity and a New York State entity to provide
information on government contracts that need competitive bids for services. The contracts provide for
commissions to be paid to these organizations in the range of 0.85% to 4.00% of the contract amount.

• Commissions paid relating to these contracts amounted to $2,987,996 and $2,401,578 for the years ended
September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and are included within contract services and products
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAR requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. These estimates
and assumptions relate to estimates of collectability of accounts receivable, accruals, useful life of property,
plant, and equipment, and impairment of long-lived assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments ,

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses
and other liabilities approximates their carrying value due to their short-term maturities. The fair value of
long-term debt approximates carrying value based on current interest rates for similar instruments.

Fair Value Measurements

FEDCAP follows guidance for fair value measurements that defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to measure fair value and
enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. It maximizes the use of observable inputs
and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the observable inputs be used when
available. i

Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
market data obtained from independent sources. Unobservable inputs reflect assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information available in the
circumstances.

The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the transparency of inputs as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities as of the
measurement date. A quoted price for an identical asset or liability in an active market provides
the most reliable fair value measurement because it is directly observable to the market.

Level 2 - Pricing inputs other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the measurement date. The nature of these securities include investments for
which quoted prices are available but traded less frequently and investments that are fair valued
using other securities, the parameters of which can be directly observed.

Level 3 - Securities that have little to no pricing observability as of the measurement date. These securities
are measured using management's best estimate of fair value, where the inputs into the
determination of fair value are not observable and require significant management judgment or
estimation.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that
market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk.- Inputs may include
price information, volatility statistics, specific and broad credit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A
financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. However, the determination of what constitutes "observable"
requires significant judgment by the entity. FEDCAP considers observable data to be that market data that
is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial
instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not
necessarily correspond to FEDCAP's perceived risk of that instrument.
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Beneficial Interest in Trusts

Donors have established and funded trusts held by third parties under which specified distributions are to
be made to a designated beneficiary or beneficiaries over the trusts' term. FEDCAP's beneficial interest in
trusts consists of interests in both charitable remainder trusts and perpetual trusts. Under charitable
remainder trusts. FEDCAP will receive the assets remaining in the trust upon the termination of the trust.
Under perpetual trusts, FEDCAP has the irrevocable right to receive all or a portion of the income earned
on the trust assets either In perpetuity or for the life of the trust. FEDCAP recognizes its interest in trusts as
increases to net assets at the fair value of trust assets, less the present value, of the estimated future
payments to be made under the specific terms of the trusts. Fluctuations in the fair value of these assets
are recorded as changes in net assets with donor restrictions in the accompanying consolidated statements
of activities.

At September 30, 2019 and 2018, FEDCAP's interest in these trusts is reflected at fair value in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position and is classified as Level 3 within the fair value
hierarchy.

2019 2018

Balance, beginning of year

Contributions / additions

Distributions

Depreciation

$  4,646,739 $ 628,759

. • 4,024,343
(58,034) (5,911)
(76,360) (452)

Balance, end of year $ 4,512,345 $ 4,646,739

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

FEDCAP reviews the carrying values of its long-lived assets, including property and equipment and other
assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
such assets may not be fully recoverable. Recoverability of long-lived assets is assessed by a comparison
of the carrying amount of the asset to the estimated future net cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset.

If estimated future net cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset, the asset is considered
impaired and an expense is recorded in an amount to reduce the carrying amount of the asset to its fair
value.

Tax-Exempt Status

FEDCAP follows guidance that clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return, including issues relating to financial statement recognition and measurement. This
guidance provides that the tax effects from an uncertain tax position can only be recognized in the financial
statements if the position is "more-likely-than-not" to be sustained if the position were to be challenged by
a taxing authority. The assessment of the tax position is based solely on the technical merits of the position,
without regard to the likelihood that the tax position may be challenged.
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FEDCAP is exempt from federal income tax under IRC section 501(c)(3), though it is subject to tax on
income unrelated to their respective exempt purpose, unless that income is otherwise excluded by the
Code. These organizations have processes presently in place to ensure the maintenance of their tax-
exempt status; to identify and report unrelated income; to determine their filing and tax obligations in
jurisdictions for which they have nexus; and to identify and evaluate other matters that may be considered
tax positions. FEDCAP has determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions that require
recognition or,disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill

Goodwill was.. established through the acquisition of Kennedy Scott. The value reported on the
accompanying consolidated statement of financial position represents the residual difference between the
consideration paid and the fair value of the net assets acquired. FEDCAP has elected under relevant
guidance to amortize goodwill on a straight-line basis over 10 years and to perform a goodwill impairment
analysis at the entity or reporting unit level when a triggering event occurs that indicates the fair value of
the entity or reporting unit may be below its carrying amount. No impairment charges were recorded during
fiscal 2019.

NOTE 3 - CONTRIBUTIONS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE

At September 30, 2019 and 2018, contributions and grants receivable, net of the allowance for doubtful
accounts, consisted of the following:

2019 2018

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due in one to five years

Less; allowance for uncollectible receivables

$  4,602,341 $ 1,237,222
.  - 309,306

4,602,341 1,546,528

(250,000) (250,000)

$  4,352,341 $ 1,296,528

Approximately 36% and 26% of the contributions and grants receivable (gross) is due from one donor at
September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 4-INVESTMENTS

Investments, at fair value, consisted of the following at September 30:

2019 2018

Money market funds
Mutual funds

$  288,173 $' 5,329,461
8,415,739 12,897,809

$  8,703,912 $  18,227,270

FEDCAP's mutual fund investments are classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy. FEDCAP's
money market fund investments do not meet the definition of a security under US GAAP, and as such, the
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements are not applicable.
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NOTE 5 . INVENTORIES, NET

Inventories consisted of the following at September 30;

2019 2018

Inventories:

Raw materials $  86,883 $ 219,880
Work-in-process and finished goods 114,810 114,810
Reserve (90,000) (90,000)

$  111,693 $ 244,690

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY, pLaNT AND EQUIPMENT. NET

Fixed assets, net, consisted of the following at September 30:

2019 2018

Land $  1,617,809 $ 1,017,809
Building improvements 4,206,798 3,492,788
Buildings 40,342,758 37,052,760
Capital lease - building 35,918,547 35,918,547
Furniture, fixtures and computer systems 18,493,480 14,157,674
Leasehold improvements 9,802,911 9,143,432

110,382,303 100,783,010

Less: accumulated depreciation ' (23,643,153) (18,712,293)

$  86,739,150 $ 82,070,717

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended September 30,2019 and 2018 was $4,977,686
and $4,432,003, respectively.

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL LEASES

In May of 2014, FRS entered into a condominium leasehold agreement In a building located at 205 East
42nd Street in New York City for 64,303 square feet of space consisting of the entire second and third floor
and a portion of the ground floor. FRS began occupying the space in December 2014 and the agreement
expires in fiscal 2043. The interest rate is fixed at 4.20%. FRS accounted for this agreement as a capital
lease, and as such, the related cost of $35,918,547 representing the present value of the total future
minimum lease payments due at the inception of the agreement, is included within "property, plant and
equipment, net" in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position at September 30, 2019
and 2018. Depreciation expense of $1,238,571 was recorded in fiscals 2019 and 2018. The outstanding
principal balance on the lease, inclusive of accrued interest expense, as of September 30, 2019 and 2018,
is $36,246,919 and $36,353,740, respectively.

During fiscal 2015, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount of
$22,074, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2019, and 2018, accumulated
depreciation associated with this lease agreement is $19,867 and $15,452, respectively. The outstanding
principal balance on the lease as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, is $2,207 and $6,622, respectively.
The maturity date is March 31, 2020 and the interest rate is fixed at 6.73%.
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During fiscal 2016, CWS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehides in the amount
of $44,464, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2019, and 2018, accumulated
depreciation associated with this lease agreement is $40,018 and $31,125, respectively. The outstanding
principal balance on the lease as of September 30. 2019 and 2018, is $4,446 and $13,339, respectively.
The maturity date is March 31, 2020 and the interest rate is fixed at 6.73%.

During fiscal 2015, ESNY obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount
of $80,785, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30,2019, and 2018, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $68,277 and $ 52,511, respectively. The outstanding principal balance on the
lease as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, was $12,508 and $28,627, respectively. The maturity date is
June 30, 2020 and the interest rate is fixed at 6.97%.

In 2015 and 2016, ESCT obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance equipment in the amount
of $109,418, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30,2019 and 2018, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $27,671 and $5,534, respectively. The outstanding principal balance on the
leases as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 was $24,200 and $47,190, respectively. The maturity dates
run through May 14, 2021 with varying interest rates from 6% - 0.99%.

During fiscal 2018, ESNY obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount
of $128,298, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30,2019 and 2018, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $61,233 and $35,573, respectively. The outstanding principal balance on the
lease as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 was $67,702 and $93,362, respectively. The maturity dates are
through June 30, 2022 and the interest rate is fixed at 6.70% and 8.00%.

During fiscal 2018, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount of
$370,074, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2019 and 2018, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $160,373 and $122,766, respectively. The outstanding principal balance on the
lease as of September 30, 2019 and 2016 was $171,435 and $248,418, respectively.

During fiscal 2018, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount of
$82,264 principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2019 and 2018, accumulated
depreciation associated with these lease agreements was $31,367 and $13,914, respectively. The
outstanding principal balance on the lease as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 was $51,454 and $77,578,
respectively. The maturity dates are through November 30, 2022 and the interest rate varies from 7.10%
to 7.45%.

On September 14, 2018, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance-office furniture in
the amount of $463,495, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2019 and 2018, the
accumulated depreciation balance was $66,213 and $0, respectively. The outstanding principal balance
on the lease as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 was $347,621 and $440,320, respectively. The maturity
dates are through June 2023 and the interest rate is 6.58%.
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The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with
the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2019:

Year Ending September 30,

2020 $ 2,155,006
2021 2,159,924
2022 2,086,625
2023 1.994,784
2024 1,911,084
Thereafter 50,775,198

Total minimum lease payments 61,082,621

Less: Amount representing interest (24,154,129)

Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 36,928,492

NOTE 8 - REVOLVING LOANS

Israel Discount Bank of New York

FRS entered into a revolving loan agreement with Israel Discount Bank of New York {"IDS") to finance
working capital needs with an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $25,000,000. The line is
collateralized by FEDCAP's accounts receivable and was extended during fiscal 2019 to mature on
October 17, 2020. The interest rate for the revolving loan agreement is the Prime Rate. As of
September 30, 2019, and 2018, FRS had borrowings on this lineof credit of $23,653,273 and $14,653,273,
respectively, at an Interest rate of 5.50% and 5.25%, respectively.

RBS Citizens Bank, N.A.

ESNY has an agreement with RBS Citizens Bank, N.A for a $3,000,000 revolving line of credit with FRS as
the co-borrower, which matured on December 15, 2018 and was subsequently extended until May 2019.
Communications with the bank regarding refinancing of this line of credit are in process as of the date that
the accompanying consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. As of September 30,
2019, and 2018, ESNY had borrowings on this line of credit of $3,000,000, at an interest rate of 4.1% and
4.5%, respectively.

Frost Bank

ESCT obtained an uncollateralized revolving line of credit with Frost Bank with a $200,000 limit that matured
on February 6, 2019, upon which the balance was repaid in full. As of September 30, 2018, ESCT had
borrowings on this line of credit of $200,000 at a floating interest rate, defined as 1.75% plus the financial
institution's prime rate.
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes Payable

On October 21, 2004, TOTS entered into a $700,000 mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition of
the building located in Bronx, New York. The note was secured by the property and all of the assets of
TOTS. The interest rate is 5.0% and principal and interest of $4,960 is payable monthly through the maturity
date of November 1, i2024. At September 30, 2019, the outstanding principal balance was $270,015.

On December 5, 2014, ESNY entered into a $1,980,000 mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition
of certain property located in Valhalla, New York. The note was secured by the property .and is guaranteed
by FEDCAP. The interest rate Is 3.66% for the first 60 months then, as of the first day of the sixty-first
month, the interest rate will reset to 1.75% in excess of the then bank's five-year Cost of Funds. In no event
shall the reset rate be less than 3.66%. Principal and interest of $9,153 is payable monthly through the
maturity date of January 1, 2025. At September 30, 2019 and 2018, the outstanding principal balance was
$1,789,338 and $1,832,909, respectively.

On November 4, 20.16, MVLE entered into a $350,000 note payable with Union Bank & Trust. The note is
secured by accounts receivable and equipment. The interest rate is 4.5% and principal and interest are
paid monthly. The note matures in November 2019. As of September 30. 2019 and 2018, the outstanding
principal balance was $20,725 and $142,471, respectively.

On Dec 13,2016, ESCT entered into a $18,558 note payable with J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. The note
is secured by the assets of ESCT. The interest rate Is 6.1% and principal and interest are paid monthly.
The note matures in December 2021. As of September 30, 2019 and 2018, the outstanding-principal
balance was $9,060 and $12,702, respectively.

On May 18, 2017, ESCT entered into a $243,650 note payable with Wells Fargo, N.A. The note was
secured by accounts receivable and equipment. The interest rate was defined at a variable rate plus prime
and principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2018, the outstanding principal balance
was $151,086. During the year erided September 30, 2019, the note was paid in full.

Bonds Payable

In December 2013, FRS entered into a Loan Agreement with Build NYC Resource Corporation ("Build
NYC), a local development corporation, for Build NYC to issue bonds to finance the purchase of the sixth
floor of a building located at 633 Third Avenue in New York City and related expenses. Build NYC issued
$18,450,000 of tax-exempt revenue bonds ("Series 2013A"). Monthly payments of interest commenced In
June 2014. The Series 2013A bonds have a coupon rate of 4.2% with a maturity date of December 1,
2033. The Series A bonds were placed with IDB and, as part of the bond purchase and continuing covenant
agreement between FRS and IDB, FRS must maintain a minimum balance with IDB of $4,000,000, which
is included within investments in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position at
September 30, 2019 and 2018. At September 30, 2019 and 2018, the outstanding principal balance of the
Series 2013A bonds was $16,510,000 and $17,025,000, respectively.
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In December 2010, ESNY in connection with the Monroe County Industrial Development Corporation and
RBS Citizens Bank, N.A. issued $5,250,000 in Series 2010 tax-exempt Revenue Bonds {"Series 2010").
The Series 2010 bonds were used to finance the acquisition of certain property located in Irondequoit, New
York and to refinance certain ESNY debt. The Series 2010 bonds are secured by a mortgage on all
properties and improvements financed by the bond and are guaranteed by FRS. ESNY may elect to prepay
some portion or all of the outstanding bonds subject to a prepayment fee as defined in the agreement. The
agreement also requires bank approval prior to ESNY incurring additional indebtedness. The Series 2010
bonds are subject to tender for mandatory purchase at the.election of the bondholder beginning June 1,
2016 and thereafter every five years through June 1, 2036. At September 30, 2019 and 2018, the
outstanding principal balance of the Series 2010 bonds was $4,257,410 and $4,399,430, respectively.

On February 23, 2011, ESNY entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in connection with
the Series 2010 Bonds. The swap agreement had an outstanding notional amount of $4,245,960 and
$4,388,460 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The outstanding notional amount decreases,
in conjunction with bond principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in January 2031. ESNY remits
interest at a fixed rate of 2.99% and receives interest at a variable rate (68% of the sum of the monthly
LIBOR rate plus 2.65% (1.39% and 3.34% at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively)). The fair value
of the interest rate swap agreement as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 reflected a liability of $711,129
and $355,400, respectively. The swap is included within other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
statement of financial position and is classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.

In December 2017, FEDCAP entered into a loan agreement with Build NYC Resource Corporation
("Build NYC"), a local development corporation, for Build NYC to issue bonds to finance the renovation,
equipping and furnishing of the improvements of the sixth floor located at 633 Third Avenue in New York
City and related expenses. Build NYC issued $9,280,000 of tax-exempt revenue bonds ("Series 2017A")
and $715,000 of taxable revenue bonds ("Series 2017B"). Monthly payments of interest commenced in
February 2018. The Series 2017A bonds have a coupon rate of 3.9% with a maturity date of December 1,
2042. The Series 2017B bonds have a coupon rate of 4.5% with a maturity date of December 1, 2027.
The 2017A and 2017B bonds were placed with TD Bank. At September 30,2019 and 2018, the outstanding
principal balance of the Series 2017A and 2017B bonds was $9,498,448 and $9,788,594, respectively.

The following is a summary of minimum principal payments due on the notes and bonds at September 30,
2019:

Notes Payable Bonds Payable Total

Year Ending September 30,
2020 $  124,994 $  992,424 $  1,117,418
2021 99,250 1,019,829 1,119,079
2022 99,353 1,062,372 1,161,725
2023 103,907 1,105,555 1,209,462
2024 108,440 1,148,618 1,257,058
Thereafter 1,553,194 24,937,060 26,490,254

Total $  2,089,138 $  30,265,858 32.354,996

Less: current portion (1,117,418)
Less: bond issuance cost (868,732)

Long-term debt, net of current portion $  30,368,846
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NOTE 10 • ADVANCES FROM GOVERNMENT AGENCY

On August 30, 2018 FEDCAP received a loan of $1,485,361 from the Fund for the City of New York to
cover operating expenses pending contract registration and receipt of funds from HRA. This loan is non-
interest bearing and will be repaid no later than 30 days from the date of the loan, upon receipt of the funds
from HRA or on demand for payment by the Fund for the City of New York. At September 30, 2018, the
balance from this loan was $1,485,361. This loan was repaid in January 2019.

In August 2019, FEDCAP received contract advances in the amounts of $314,647 and $118,750 from the
New York City Human Resources Agency and the Mayor's Office of Criminal Justice, respectively, which
are payable as of September 30,2019. These advances are non-interest bearing and will be offset by future
receivables within these programs.

NOTE 11 - FORGIVEABLE CAPITAL ADVANCES

ESCT has received financial assistance for property acquisition costs from Housing and Urban
Development ("HUD") and the Austin Housing Finance Corporation ("AHFC"). Under the terms of the
agreements, funds were provided to ESCT in the form of forgivable capital advances to purchase thirty-four
housing entities. The principle and any interest are not due and will be forgiven upon maturity, as long as
ESCT continues to meet the requirements to maintain the housing units available for low income persons
with disabilities. ESCT believes that the possibility that repayment will occur is remote and as such that the
treatment of the advance as a contribution upon receipt is appropriate. Accordingly, the advances were
recorded as contributions with donor restrictions that are released from restriction over the life of the

agreement.

23



OocuSign Envelope ID; 36A62ACF-40E8-44F6^CB4-923050DC069B

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

The following table summarizes the forgivable capital advances as of September 30, 2019;

Housing I " .
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, interest rate of 5.375%, due
unless forgiven on October 11, 2045, secured by six rental housing units. At
September 30, 2019, $269,310 was included in net assets with donor restrictions
related to the Note.

Housing II
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, interest rate of 5.250%, due
unless forgiven on April 1, 2048, secured by ten rental housing units. At
September 30, 2019, $509,927 was included in net assets with donor restrictions
related to the Note.

City of Austin passed through Austin Housing Finance Corporation, interest rate of
0%, due unless forgiven on May 1, 2049, secured by ten rental housing units. As of
September 30, 2019, $369,792 was included in net assets.with donor restrictions
related to the f^ote.

Housing III
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, interest rate of 4.125%, due
unless forgiven on December 1, 2050, secured by eight rental housing units. At
September 30, 2019, $576,505 was included in net assets with donor restrictions
related to the Note.

City of Austin passed through Austin Housing Finance Corporation, interest rate of
0%, due unless forgiven on-November 30, 2050, secured by eight rental housing
units. At September 30, 2019, $385,485 was included in net assets with donor
restrictions related to the Note.

Housing IV.
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, interest rate of 4.125%, due
unless forgiven on February 15, 2053, secured by ten rental housing units. At
September .30, 2019, $894,230 was included in net assets with donor restrictions
related to the Note.

City of Austin passed through Austin Housing Finance Corporation, interest rate of
0%, due unless forgiven on February 28, 2053, secured by ten rental housing units.
At September 30, 2019, $522,051 was included in net assets with donor restrictions
related to the Note.

Total

Amourit of

Original
Advance

$  413,000

713,600

500,000

739,900

494,740

1,070,400

624,898

$  4,556,538
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NOTE 12 . COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

FEDCAP has leases for offices, program related facilities, and equipment expiring at various dates through
2032. The approximate future minimum lease commitments under existing operating leases are as follows:

Year Ending September 30,

2020 $ 5,581,739
2021 5,042,998
2022 4,752,045

2023 3,084,738
2024 2,816,225
Thereafter 7,188,437

Total $ 28,466,182

Certain office leases contain renewal and escalation clauses. For leases with escalation clauses, FEDCAP
recognized rent .expense on a straight-line basis and recognized a deferred rent liability of $467,126 and
$1,669,702 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which Is included in other liabilities In the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position. In addition to the base rents, FEDCAP is
obligated to pay additional amounts for increased operating costs.

Rent expense was $11,665,549 and $12,639,752 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

FEDCAP sublets a portion of its facilities to tenants under operating leases that expire at various dates
through December 2025. For the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, rental income from these
subleases was $1,395,310 and $562,172, respectively. The future minimum sublease rental payments to
be received are as follows:

Year Ending September 30,

2020 $ 1,725,831
2021 1,628,231
2022 1,579,431
2023 .1,440,344
2024 1,231,623

Thereafter 560,734

Total $ 8,166.194

FEDCAP is engaged in various lawsuits incidental to Its operations. In the opinion of management, the
ultimate outcome of pending litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position and results of operations of FEDCAP.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

FEDCAP participates in a number of federal and state programs. These programs require that FEDCAP
comply with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the
programs in which it participates. Alj/funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts
are subject to audit by governmerit agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of

V government contracts by, government agencies is presently not determinate, it should not. in the opinion
of management, have a material effect on FEDCAP's financial position or change in net assets.
Accordingly, no provision for any such liability that may result has been made in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 13 - TUITION REVENUE

FEDCAP receives funding for the Career Design School from the New York State Education Department,
administered by the Bureau of Proprietary School Supervision. Gross tuition income, which equaled net
tuition income, was $619,891 and $1,012,460 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, and has been included within rehabilitation and vocational programs in the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities.

NOTE 14 - NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for the following purposes as of September 30 2019 and
2018:

For use in future periods for:
Employment and job search programs
ESCT HUD capital advances
Time restricted - beneficial'interest in remainder trust

Time restricted - general

2019 2018

$  116,380 $ 122,221
3,527,300 3,641,213
2,540,391 2,765,886
297,700 149.260

6,481,771 6.678,580

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts and endowment funds
subject to appropriation and satisfaction of donor restrictions 2,017,769 1,955,853

Total $ 8,499,540 $ 8.634,433

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts and endowment funds are comprised of the following as of
September 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Easter Seals - beneficial interest in perpetual trusts $ 1,935,001 $ 1,880,853
Reserve endowment 75,000 75^000
Community Work Services endowment 7,768 7.768

$  2,017,769 $ 1.955,853
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Net assets released from restrictions during the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 were as
follows:

2019 2018

Employment and job search programs
ESCT HUD capital advances

Time restricted

Total

NOTE 15 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

$ 30,841 $ 490,089
113,913 915,325

- 1,440,130

$ 144,754 $ 2,845,544

Members of the Board of Directors of FEDCAP are associated with a law firm that has provided legal
services to FEDCAP with fees of $247,849 and $381,465 during the years ended September 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

A CWS Board member is a trustee of the Eatpn Fund. CWS leases its facilities from the Eaton Fund. Rent
paid to Eaton Fund for each of the years ended September 30. 2019 and 2018 was $129,996.

NOTE 16 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Effective January 1, 1991, FEDCAP established a Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan under Section
403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code for employee voluntary salary reduction contributions. Employees
are eligible to participate in the plan as of their employment date.

Effective October 1, 1991, FEDCAP established a Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan under Section
403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code for employees working on government contracts with a defined
contribution pension plan based on a contractual formula. Employees are eligible to participate in the plan
upon satisfactory completion of a three-month probationary period.

Effective October 1, 1994, FEDCAP established a Defined Contribution Plan under Section 403(b) of the
Internal Revenue Code for qualified participants, primarily employees who do not work on contracts. In
November 1, 2010, the Defined Contribution Plan was amended to allow all employees to participate in the
plan immediately upon hire. FEDCAP matches employee contributions up to 3% of their salaries. Employer
matching contributions fully vest after three years of employment.

Plan contributions are invested in one or more of the funding vehicles available to participants under the
plans. Each participant is fully and immediately vested in employee contributions. Employer contributions
to the plans amounted to $6,792,107 and $6,648,313 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 17. ACQUISITIONS

On October 31, 2017, FEDCAP entered into a combination agreement with Benevolent to become its sole
member. This combination was predicated on the similarities of mission and enhancement of our ability to
provide economic wellbeing for the individuals we serve. The combination further diversifies funding to
individuals and families in need, through non-government sources. This acquisition was affected without
the transfer of consideration, and as such an inherent contribution of $1,231 was recognized, which
represented the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the
acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

On April 1, 2018, FEDCAP entered into a combination agreement with MVLE to become its sole member.
MVLE provides employment, support and rehabilitation services to individuals with-disabilities in the
Northern Virginia and Washington, D.C. area. This combination was predicated on the synergies of mission
and geographic expansion of services in the Mid-Atlantic Region. This acquisition was affected without the
transfer of consideration, and as such an inherent contribution of $3,644,595 was recognized, which
represented the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the
acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

On July 1,2018, FEDCAP entered into a combination agreement with Easter Seals Central Texas f ESCT")
to become its sole member. ESCT provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle
through outpatient medical rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration
programs in the Central Texas region. This combination was predicated on the similarities of mission and
geographic expansion of services into the Southwest Region. The addition of ESCT expands the core
services to the populations served through our Easter Seals brand whose current operations are in New
York and Rhode Island. This acquisition was affected without the transfer of consideration, and as such an
inherent contribution of $4,368,955 was recognized, which represented the excess of the acquisition date
fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

On July 1, 2018, FEDCAP entered into a combination agreement with Easter Seals North Texas ("ESNT")
to become its sole member. ESNT provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle
through outpatient medical rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration
programs in the North Texas region. This combination was predicated on the similarities of mission and
geographic expansion of services into the Southwest Region. The addition of ESNT expands the core
services to the populations served through our Easter Seals brand whose current operations are in New
York and Rhode Island. This acquisition was affected without the transfer of consideration, and as such an
inherent contribution of $5,447,649-was recognized, which represented the excess of the acquisition date
fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

On December 3, 2018, FEDCAP acquired Kennedy Scott, Limited {"KS"), a United Kingdom company
through a stock purchase. KS provides high quality job support, placement, retention and related services
to people in the United Kingdom. This combination was predicated on geographic expansion of core
services into the United Kingdom. The acquisition was affected by the transfer of consideration in the
amount of $610,689. Goodwill in the amount of $761,776 was recognized, which represented the
consideration paid less the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over
the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

V
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

On March 14, 2019, Fedcap Employment Scotland became a 51% majority shareholder of Start Scotland
Limited ("SS"). 88 is a value-driven organization that strives to put its customers first, understanding their
needs and closely engaging with them on a personal level to help them on their journey to employment and
training. This joint venture was predicated on further geographic expansion into specific regions within the
United Kingdom. This transaction was affected without any consideration, and as such, and inherent
contribution of $381,450 was recognized which represented the excess of the acquisition date fair values
of the identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed. The
minority interest in the joint venture is reflected as non-controlling interest on the accompanying
consolidated statements of financial position.

On 8eptember 30, 2019, E8NY acquired and became the sole member of These Our Treasures, Inc.
{"TOTS"), a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to educate young children with developmental disabilities in
an atmosphere that embraces and accommodates individual differences and helps children to achieve in
the context of the larger classroom and school setting. The combination was predicated on similarities of
missions with our Easter Seals brand and expands the select group of population being served. This
acquisition was affected without the transfer of consideration, and as such, an inherent contribution of
$4,390,122 was recognized, which represented the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the
identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisitions for the year ended September 30, 2019:

Inherent Contribution

TOTS

Start

Scotland JV Total

Kennedy
Scott Ltd. Total

Cash and cash

equivalents $  628,040 $  307,425 $  935,465 - $  31,128 $  966,593
Accounts receivables, net 146,372 512,159 658,531 583,083 1,241,614
Contributions receivables 50,852 - 50,852 - 50,852
Inventories 259 - 259 - 259

Prepaid expenses 2,886 39,879 42,765 78,441 121,206
Other assets - - - 31,478 31,478
Property and equipment.
net 3.980,000 61,405 4,041,405 61,690 4,103,095

Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities (113,016) (539,418) (652,434) (936,907) (1,589,341)

Deferred liabilities (35,256) - (35,256) - (35,256)
Notes payable (270,015) - (270,015) - (270,015)

Net assets (deficit) $4,390,122 $  381,450 $4,771,572 $  (151,087) $ 4,620,485

NOTE 18 - CONCENTRATIONS

FEDCAP provides building services for federal buildings, which comprised 23% and 22% of total revenues
during the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. FEDCAP provides offsite data entry
personnel, custodial and other services to various branches of the state and city government through one
New York State organization, which comprised 7% of total revenues during the years ended September 30,
2019 and 2018.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Financial instruments that potentially subject FEDCAP to concentrations of credit and market risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions, which from time to time may
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") limit. Management does not believe that a
significant risk of loss exists due to the failure of a financial institution,

NOTE 19 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

FEDCAP regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual
commitments. FEDCAP has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents,
marketable debt and equity securities, and lines of credit. See note 8 for information about FEDCAP's lines
of credit.

For purposes of assessing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period,
FEDCAP considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, FEDCAP
operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general
expenditures.

As of September 30, 2019, the following tables show the total financial assets held by FEDCAP and the
amounts of those financial assets that could readily be made available within one year of the balance sheet
date to meet general expenditures;

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,821,462
Accounts receivable, net 54,652,438
Contributions receivable, net 4,352,341
Investments convertible to cash over the next 12 months 8,703,912

Total financial assets available within the next 12 months 77,530,153

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditure due to:
Donor-imposed restrictions (3,726,448)
Minimum liquidity requirement under borrowing arrangements (4,000,000)

Total financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the

next 12 months 5 69,803,705

FEDCAP had negative cash flows from operations for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 of
approximately $11,500,000 and $5,500,000, respectively. This operational decrease in cash during fiscal
2019 is primarily due to an increase in FEDCAP's receivable balances, which is mainly due to delayed
payments from government funders. This delay also required FEDCAP to further draw on its line of credit
during fiscal 2019 in order to provide additional working capital. Continued operations of FEDCAP are
dependent upon FEDCAP's ability to maintain its revenue levels while increasing margins and collecting
on its outstanding receivables. Additionally, FEDCAP will need to refinance its existing debt arrangements
which are coming due during fiscal 2020 and 2021. The accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a basis which assumes the realizations of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities
and commitments in the normal course of FEDCAP's business.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 20 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

FEDCAP evaluated its September 30, 2019 consolidated financial statements for subsequent events
through August 14, 2020, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance.
FEDCAP is unaware of any events which would require recognition or disclosure in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, except as noted below.

On January 10, 2020 FEDCAP formed Fedcap Canada, Inc., which began operations in Canada on April 1,
2020.

On January 16, 2020 FEDCAP entered an Asset Purchase Agreement with Breton International, Inc, for
the purchase of the school it operates under the name APEX Technical School. FEDCAP formed Fedcap
APEX Acquisition, LLC to house this school.

The COVID-19 pandemic, the effects of which first became known in January 2020, is having a broad and
negative impact on commerce and financial markets around the world. The United States and global
markets experienced significant declines in value resulting from uncertainty caused by the pandemic.
FEDCAP is closely monitoring cash flows, working capita) and liquidity and is actively working to minimize
the impact of these declines. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on FEDCAP's operational and financial
performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak and
its impact on timely collection of receivables, federal and state funding, customers, employees and vendors,
all of which at present, cannot be determined. Accordingly, the extent to which COVID-19 rriay impact
FEDCAP's financial position and changes in net assets and cash flows is uncertain and the accompanying
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the effects of this pandemic.
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Tara Mercado

Summary of Qualifications

ICD-IO-CM, "EPIC 'PCIS •PATCOM 'MEDISENSE •Meditech ♦Carevoyant •eClinical Works
LMR/Data view • Ebridge 'RIS • ScerlS •PaySpan •Emdeon •CPU 'QSl "Wits •Cerner •Microsoft
Office

Medicare •Medicaid •United HealthCare •Cigna •Anthem •Harvard Pilgrim •Tufts •BCBS
•Commercial/Workers Comp Insurances • Self-Pay •State Contracts

Education

Seacoast Career School
Manchester,.NH Health Claims Certificate

New Hampshire Community Technical College
Studied Design

Central High School

2007

2003-2004

1999-2003

Professional Background

Financial/Budget Contract Manager
Fed Cap/Granite Pathways • Manchester NH November 2018 to current

Create billing operations and structure for multiple State and Federal funded programs
Oversight and management of billing staff and workflow
Maintain stable cash flow and reduced AR over 30 days
Act as a liaison between multiple recovery programs, billing company and corporate office
Sort and process incoming correspondence for all programs
Responsible for communication with clients, vendors, funders and insurance companies
Developed/Maintain multiple spreadsheets with high volume data entry and measuring metrics
Review, code and submit vendor invoices and employee expenses to accounts payable
Maintain risk management processes to ensure revenue is on track and not miscalculated
Track multiple program budget lines/expenses to ensure budgets are maximized

Billing Representative
XRAY Professional Association Concord NH October 2017 to October 2018

Ancillary Billing
High volume posting of payments
Electronic paper billing/appeals and follow up
Process adjustment requests, denial posting, patient and insurance refunds
Answer high volume patient calls and review monthly statements
Sort and process incoming correspondence
Communicate with hospital/facility staff and or responsible parties of patients
Research payer policies and covered policies via websites
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Billing Representative

US Labs • Lakeville MA August 2016 to April 2017

Lab Billing

Assist in reducing A/R for multiple payers over 30 days

Data, Insurance, Order Entry

Electronic paper billing/appeals and follow up

Process adjustment requests, denial posting, patient and insurance refunds

Answer patient calls and review monthly statements

Sort and process incoming correspondence

Research payer policies via payer websites

Billing Representative II

Mass General Physicians Organization • Bedford, NH December 2012 to July 2016

Physicians Billing

Assist in reducing A/R for multiple payers over 30 days

Identify trends or inconsistencies with payers

Electronic and paper billing/appeals and follow up

Process adjustment requests, denial posting, patient and Insurance refunds, credits

Maintain quality communication with A/R managers within organization

Resolve customer service Inquiries for patient requests

Assist GPM with account resolutions with projects or patient/provider concerns

Sort and process incoming correspondence

Research payer policies via payer websites

Claims Resolution Associate

Affiliated Professional Services Wareham, MA October 2011 to October 2012

Physicians Billing

Responsible for high volume collections via electronic remittance as well as paper denials

Complete monthly aging over 45 days on all accounts to Improve cash flow

Obtain all billing information, authorizations, and referrals via phone erhail and hospital systems

Process mail, payer denials, attorney requests, PIP exhaust letters, bankruptcies, self-pay statements

Perform follow up on outstanding claims

Process paper and/or electronic appeals

Accounts Receivable/Collections Specialist

Easter Seals • Manchester NH December 2007 to June 2010

Residential and Physicians Billing

Responsible for high volume collections (65 to 70 calls per day)

Complete monthly aging reports over 30 days to, improve cash flow

Maintain electronic, web, paper and statement billing for several group homes

Perform data charge entry for residential stays, schooling and special stays

Obtain all billing information, authorizations, and referrals via phone email and hospital systems

Research contracts thru state funded insurances, private carriers, self-pay and responsible school districts

Maintain monthly reports on revenue adjustments



DocuSign Envelope ID: 38A62ACF-40Ee-44F6-8CB4-923050DC069B

•  Research variances

•  Report monthly cash projections for all insurance carriers

Achievement/Honors

•  Recipient of the President's Award at Easter Seals. Developed and implemented a new procedure for
current staff and state of NH workers to follow. This procedure eliminated revenue adjustments and
saved resources for collecting payments on outstanding claims deemed un-collectable. This procedure
changed the department goal of outstanding claims from 60 days to 30 days. The result was increased
cash flow and reduction in A/R over 90 days.

•  Completed - Effective Performance Management Strategy Workshop -2019
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P

Casey Marie Guidi-Lutz

Experienced with:

•  Data Analytics and Reporting • Understanding of Internal controls, operational

•  Project Management risk and risk mitigation

• Metrics management and action • Process Flow Communication

• Quality Analytics / Quality Control (QAQC) • Finding actionable paths through complex

•  Effective balance of short term goals and long scenarios

term planning ♦ Training Llfecycle with Standards and Rollouts

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

The Fedcap Group February 2018 - Present
Associate Director of Quality Assurance and Business Development
Mission: A non-profit based in NY comprised of 20 subsidiaries nationally and serves over 350,000 people annually,

providing services targeted to helping people achieve long-term economic well-being and self-sufficiency.

Responsible for: collaborating with subsidiaries on quality related, data driven projects and business development

needs in order to gain or maintain regulatory compliance and financial goals.

Major Projects Include:

•  Lead the process of CARF (Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities) accreditation for the Boston

subsidiary. Process included conducting weekly staff training on company policies and procedures, internal audit

and development of quality control for client files, revision and creation of dozens of standard operating

procedures and overall accreditation preparation. Received 4 Year CARF Accreditation status September 2018.

•  Asked to spend 6 months managing the Amazon Workforce Project to determine if the project can be lucrative.
•  Accepted role as Salesforce Change Champion in which a system wide optimization process required detailed

training of changes to key players within the organization.

• Manage consistency, information and clarity of all subsidiary board reporting requiring heavy interaction with all

Executive Directors and corporate departments.

•  Asked to join NH subsidiary, Granite Pathways, to roll out data and contract compliance tracking, provide

leadership for emerging and already established projects and general quality assurance.

Google

Google Express with Aoecco May 2016 • February 2018

Operations/Data Analytics/QAQC/Training (Contractor)

Mission: Google Express is an online marketplace connecting consumers with popular retailers

Responsible for Training, Data Analysis, Quality Control and New business Onboarding for New England territory
which includes 50 employees and 15 retailers.

Responsibilities Include:

Analyze and Report weekly on customer facing metrics including quality and fulfillment rate and coach on results

After six months of developing personalized reporting style for the Boston office, was asked to roll out

standardized reporting and hold monthly calls for 6 struggling offices.

Implement quality control change based on needs of operation for New York and Boston territories while

providing consultation assistance to offices nationally.

Manage expansion efforts including training, space planning and follow up care of brand new merchants

Support operational performance and growth by creating, documenting and managing standard operating

procedures (SOPs)

Responsible for initial and continued training on best practices of Google Express including continued

improvement through train-the-trainer efforts, one-on-one quality coaching, documentation and correction.

Asked to beta test data based performance management tool and roll out to Boston Market. Upon 60%-70%

increase of metrics, was asked to mentor other geos prior to their rollouts.
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Dependable Cleaners March 2013 - May 2016

Director of Operations

Mission: Sixteen location Dry Cleaning Company with $15M annual revenue and 75 year history

Responsible for ongoing analysis, implementation and follow through of operations using data to Initiate system wide
improvements in structure, process, communication and flow. Involved in all aspects of business development,
marketing and public relations, customer service, operations, human resource and,finances.
Accomplishments Include:

Dailv/Weeklv Tasks:

Tracked company metrics including sales, employee outreach, fleet activity, marketing and supply usage in order
to assess consistency and best practices; suggested/implemented changes as necessary.

Point person for research, implementation and analysis of all technical aspects of the company including; POS
System, Alarm System, Sharepoint, and Fleet Tracking System. Research, Rollout and Analysis of all new mobile
applications for employees and customers on Yelp, Google and Website.
Developed Operations Manuals for all established and updated processes and procedures.

Oversaw company-wide recruiting.

Large Proiects:

Conducted research, design and implementation of a fleet tracking system for an 18 vehicle fleet saving the
company an average of $4k annually in maintenance, fuel and accident expenses. Process involved continuous
analysis and tracking.

Completed research and paperwork for the Brownfields Tax Credit Application for two commercial properties,
totaling $3M each.

Developed and submitted application to establish a not for profit entity as part of the organizational structure to
increase community profile and advance philanthropic focus.

Compiled all documentation to support the Woman Business Enterprise application through SOMBWA. Granted
WBE status by the state of Massachusetts.

Managed and scheduled the rollout of a new alarm system for 16 locations and continued to oversee all aspects

of the company's security system.

American Career Institute ' March 2010 - January 2013

Director ofAdmissioris

Mission: A career-focused educational institute providing certificate training in Healthcare, Information Technology
and Digital Media. ** On January 9"*, 2013 American Career Institute closed its doors.
Responsible for maintaining a student enrollment process in one of eight campuses. Responsible for productivity and
meeting campus goals via metrics management.

Spruce Environmental Technologies July 2008 - March 2010

Account Manager

Mission: The world's leading manufacturer of inline fans for Radon Mitigation and Indoor Air Quality

Responsible for overseeing Spruce Ventilation product division including recruitment, training, and.supervision of an
outside sales force comprised of 27 independent reps. Outreach and recruitment of national distributors.

Coordinated all aspects of participation in multiple annual national trade shows.

Quantum Events. USA June 2006 - July 2008

National Training Manager

Mission: Quantum Events USA provided event based marketing for national charities.

Responsible for coaching and training a team of 25 Area Marketing Directors across the country. Provided onsite
training, telephonic support and event planning consultation. Established area performance goals and provided

technical assistance and corrective action as necessary.

EDUCATION

Isenberg School of Management - University of Massachusehs, Amherst 2013-2015

Master of Business Administration (MBA)
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Manhattan College - Riverdale, NY 2002-2006

Bachelors of Science: Majors • Marketing and Business Management
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DONNA KEEFE

EDUCATION I Trinity High School, Manchester. NH
Springfield College - BS Human Services/Administration
Recovery Coach Academy & Training of Trainers -certified

EXPERIENCE I 12/1/2015 - Present

DIRECTOR OF NEW INITIATIVES - GRANITE PATHWAYS NH

Granite Pathways is a subsidiary of Fedcap. As the Director of New
Initiatives, I manage the local day to day infrastructure and work with
referring agencies to identify, develop and maintain relationships
pertaining to billing, community relations and development. I was also
instrumental in the startup of the following programs, Safe Harbor
Recovery Center, Regional Access Point of Services, Strength to
Succeed and Job Launch. I work closely the corporate Engagement
Team overseeing fundraising events in NH.

9/2013-12/1/2015

NE DIRECTOR OF ADMISSIONS & CLIENT SERVICES

FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES

As the NE Director of Admissions & Client Services, I supervised the

admissions process throughout the Fedcap NE regions working with all
the referring agencies to identify, develop and maintain relationships
pertaining to billing & client services. In this role, I worked in Rl to
systematicallymanage the federally mandated Interim Settlement
Agreement that shut down segregated workshops for the DD population.
The Fedcap team in Rl developed programs and systems to train the IDD
population to be gainfully employed in the community. This effort is
nationally recognized as Fedcap continues to educate other national
agencies via our Rl, National Center Institute for System Improvement
seminars available on the Fedcap website.

1995-2013

DIRECTOR OF ADMISSIONS

EASTER SEALS NH, ME, NY, VT

As Director of Admissions for the Adolescent Residential/Educational

Psychiatric & Neurobehavioral Programs I was responsible for the
admissions and transitions process within the continuum of care
programs as well as the final discharges from Easter Seals. I managed
referrals from various states and agencies where I applied knowledge of
differing state and agency placement requirements/laws. In addition to •
working with families I managed the monthly billing, file retention,
census/wait list for 6 satellite intensive residential group homes and over
75 foster homes. I implemented may systems to manage the complex
admission/discharge process.
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1992-1995

City of Manchester NH School Department
Served as a liaison between team members - parents, teachers,
administrators and students. I.was responsible to implement behavior
plans/procedures to transition special education students back into the
traditional classroom from an alternative/self-contained classroom. I also

worked closely and supported low income families through the lEP
process at the inner city schools.

1988-1992

SERESC - BIRCHWOOD HIGH SCHOOL

Aided in developing class curriculums In this alternative setting for the
Seriously Emotionally Disturbed students. Taught classes under
supervisioh of teacher, organized field trips and participated in all goal
oriented programs working 1:1 with the students if needed.

AWARDS/RECOGNITIONS/Trainings

1997 - Easter Seals President's Meritorious Award - for outstanding
service by an employee

2000 - Easter Seals NH, VT, NY, Employee of the Year - Chosen from
1,200 employees

2003 - Easter Seals Service First Award - Customer Service Award

2004 - Crisis Intervention and Physical Restraint Training

2005 - State of NH DCYF/DJJS Directors Award - this award is given
yearly to one NH individual who goes above and beyond to help the state
workers solve their difficult cases

2015 - Mental Health First Aid USA

2016 - CCAR Recovery Coach Academy & Training of Trainers Program

2016 - NAMI NH's Connect Suicide Prevention Training

2016 - Crisis Intervention in the Workplace

2016 - Breaking the Stigma - Language Training

2017 - First Aid/CPR and Narcan Training

PAGE 2
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WHITNEY H. BROWN

OBJECTIVE

To help individuals initiate and sustain a meaningful, self-directed recovery from active substance use
disorder, realize their capabilities and spend their time purposefully.

OUALlFrCATlONS/LlCENSURE
- Licensed Acupuncture Detoxification Specialist (NH License #27)
-Certified Sober Parenting Journey Facilitator (11/9/18)
-Certified Recovery Support Worker, (CRSW) License #0148, NPl #1154806438
-Mental Health First Aid National Instructor (certified 4/27/18)
-Licensed Nursing Assistant (State of New Hampshire #055699-24)

EDUCATION

UNH PROFESSIONAL EXTENSION SCHOOL

September 2019 Introduction to Grant Writing
October 2019 Introduction to Basic Project Management

CITY UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

January 2011 - May 2011 Marketing Principles and Business Law in the Digital Age
BOSTON COLLEGE .

September 2004 - May 2008 Bachelor of Arts in International Studies
UNIVERSITY OF LOYOLA CHICAGO (The Beiiine Centerl

January 2007 - May 2007 Semester Abroad in Beijing, China
EXPERIENCE

SAFE HARBOR RECOVERY CENTER ofGP January 2019 - Present Portsmouth, NH
Facilitator/ Parenting Journey Coord.
Peer Recovery Support Specialist

GRANITE PATHWAYS fOPl August 2018 - January 2019 Portsmouth, NH
Independent Consultant

MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES March 2016 - January 2019 Manchester, NH
Licensed Nursing Assistant

NEW CASTLE FIRE DEPARTMENT October 2016 -May 2020 New Castle, NH
Member; Support Medical Team

RISE ABOVE August - October 2015 Nashua, NH
House Manager

STILETTO SHOES. INC. May 2013 - January 2014 Portsmouth, NH
Assistant Manager

WENTWORTH BY THE SEA HOTEi. - May 2003 - June 2012 New Castle, NH
Waitress

GUNDERSON. DFXrMER LLP October 2010 - Apri 12012 New York, NY
Receptionist, Legal Secretary

INTERNATIONAL VENUE GROUP April 2010 - September 2010 Shangliai, China
Waitress; World Expo.

THE MANDARIN ORIENTAL September 2008 - May 2009 Boston, MA
Waitress

HERVOICES September 2007 - June 2008 Chestnut Hill, MA
Intern; Non-Profit

BOSTON COLLEGE September 2007 - Jan. 2009 Chestnut Hill, MA

References Available Upon Request
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PATRICIA M. REED

NEW HAMPSHIRE STATE DIRECTOR

aUALIFICATIONS

Demonstrated executive with more than 30 years' experience serving individuals with disabilities in
children and youth services, addiction services, and residential treatment programs
EXPERIENCE

2018 New Hampshire State Director, Granite Pathways, Inc.

•  Responsible for overall program management, program expansion and development, fiscal

integrity, quality compliance and external relationships in New Hampshire for Granite Pathways,

Inc.

2017 to 2018 Consultant

•  Provide system analysis and consultation for a variety of entities providing services to individuals

with intellectual and other developmental disabilities and behavioral health needs

•  Led three NH regional agencies serving this population to plan for youth with challenging
behaviors to receive adult services to meet their needs in a community based context

2015 to 2017 Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, Lakevlew Management, Inc., Austin TX

•  Responsible to provide program and operations consultation and support to Lakeview Specialty

Hospital and Rehabilitation Center in Waterford, Wl

•  Directed to develop relationships.with funders and providers in other states to pursue program

development to most effectively utilize Lakeview's resources

•  Represented the company In all matters for New England, New Jersey and Pennsylvania

2015 Executive Director, Lakeview Neurorehabilitation Center, Inc., Effingham, NH

•  Responsible to provide program and operations consultation and support to Lakeview Specialty
Hospital and Rehabilitation Center in Waterford, Wl

•  Directed to develop relationships with funders and providers in other states to pursue program

development to most effectively utilize Lakeview's resources

•  Represented the company in all matters for New England, New Jersey and Pennsylvania

2014 to 2015 Children's Director, NH Bureau of Behavioral Health, Concord, NH

•  -Responsible to provide leadership in planning and development of the state children's behavioral

health system, act as liaison between CMHC Children's programs and the state office for program

and client specific information exchange and problem solving

•  Provided support to implement statewide initiatives

•  Represented the Department of Health and Human Service on the Children's Behavioral Health

Collaborative Executive Committee, Steering Committee and various workgroups

•  Co-coordinated the Safe Schools/Health Students grant with the Department of Education
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2011 to 2014 Project Director, Health Profession Opportunity Project, NH Office of Minority Health and

Refugee Affairs, Concord, NH

•  Directed and implemented a five-year, $12 milllon-dollar healthcare workforce development
grant to recruit, train and place low income individuals in healthcare jobs

•  Developed RFP's, negotiated and managed contracts, and monitored grant and contractor

budgets

• Worked closely with regional health care providers to understand their workforce needs;

partnered with educational programs and other community groups to ensure that the individuals

are well prepared to meet employer expectations for technical and soft skills

•  Provided leadership and direction to develop innovative strategies to overcome system based

barriers to education, training and self-sufficiency for NH citizens

•  Collaborated with other NH workforce programs to efficiently use available resources to achieve

shared employment goals

2002 to 2010 Senior Director of Clinical Services, Easter Seals of NH, Manchester, NH

•  Provided leadership and oversight for the design, organization and delivery of clinical services for

Easter Seals NH, including the development of Autism Services, an adolescent program for dual

disorder treatment, residential DBT program and management of a residential treatment

program for adults with substance abuse issues

•  Provided oversight for the DCYF Administrative Case Review contract

•  Developed and monitored budgets for programs

• Worked collaboratively with Easter Seals Development to write federal, state, arid foundation

grants, progress reports and budget monitoring

•  Developed relationships with funders and providers in NH and other states to pursue program

development and effective treatment and services for individuals and families

EDUCATION

•  1982 -1987 Boston College, Chestnut Hill, MA: Graduate School of Arts and Science Department of

Sociology (Four Year Doctoral Work)

•  1982 B.A. Norte Dame College, Manchester, NH Major- Behavioral Science/ Minor- English Summa
Cum Laude, Dean's List

RESEARCH EXPERIENCE ^ '

Contracted to assist staff and clients on three community based residential facilities in the development
of client self-government programs through participant observation and didactics. Responsible for both
training and evaluation. Sites included Seacoast Mental Health Center- Portsmouth, NH and Greater

Manchester Mental Health Center- Manchester, NH. Responsible for leading the research design, data
collection and reporting for the evaluation of a partial Hospital Program. The primary methodology was

intensive interviewing.
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Dustin E. Ward

Summary

I am a motivated and determined Individual looking to learn new skills while working with others. I am

confident in my abilities to learn new skills quickly, as well as any operating procedures in new

environments. I work well with other team-oriented individuals and can also operate self-sufficiently if

need be. I am willing to ask questions if I do not know the answer and take direction from a supervisor. I

will maintain appropriate certifications, or acquire necessary ones for the position that I am in. I have a

tendency towards being upfront and honest, while being respectful and professional. I do my best to

meet pepple where they are at. I am also attending the Fedcap Leadership Academy class of 2020.

Certifications

CRSW (Certified Recovery Support Worker) License number 0079, NPI: 1912445503

BLS (basic life support) Valid until 10/2021

WFR (Wilderness First Responder) Valid until 10/2020

AMGA-CWI (American mountain guides association climbing wall instructor) Status is valid

Experience

(Site Manager) Fedcap Inc. Breaking The Cycle June 2020 - Present

While working for Breaking The Cycle, I manage 6 staff members and oversee the Sanford Maine

location. I conduct one on one supervisions with each staff bi-weekly. I conduct morning team huddles .

to brief the staff on priority goals for the day. I complete and enter staff payroll for each pay period. I

attend all agency wide trainings and leadership team meetings via Zoom. I coordinate greater agency

efforts with the leadership team of Breaking The Cycle. I send monthly reports to the leadership team

with updates on the Sanford office. I perform monthly customer service observations of each respective

job role in the office. I help staff work through difficult interactions with participants that may be in crisis

and provide support. I document all participant interactions in FedcapCARES, the programs case

management software.

(Manager) The Doorway at Granite Pathways January 2019 - June 2020

In February of 2019 I was promoted to Manager of the Nashua Doorway. I managed 6-7 staff and had

oversight on daily operations. I conducted individual supervision with staff, led staff meetings,

conducted case review, and fielded operational questions vvhen staff was unsure. I also conducted

community outreach and attended local regional meetings such as continuum of care and the Mayor's

opioid task force meetings. I gave various presentations about The Doorway program throughout the

community and Nashua Public Health region. In August of 2019 I was asked to be the manager of both

Nashua and Manchester Doorway programs. I officially took the role in the beginning of September of

2019 as Manager for both programs. This position consisted of managing over 20 staff in three offices in

two major cities. Managing the Manchester office included being on call 7 days a week including

holidays until 11pm to field questions and respond to emergency or crisis situations as they would arise.

During this time, we streamlined daily.billing to increase revenue and implemented FedcapCARES.

Manchester Doorway was a complex, high paced working environment, we saw on average 150-200

clients a month. We implemented a new training process to ensure fully trained staff. I performed

additional duties as assigned.

(Recovery Specialist) Granite Pathways Regional Access Points Service February 2018 - January 2019

Assisted clients with substance use disorder or SUD in finding treatment within the NH continuum of

care network. Documented all interactions in WITS software and conducted follow-up within our
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Operating procedure. Assisted case managers in follow-ups with treatment providers to help assist

clients in further services. Worked with mobile crisis response teams when necessary. Assisted with

additional duties as assigned.

(Personal Trainer) The Phoenix (Phoenix Muitisport) April 2017 - Decerhber 2017

Worked as a personal trainer assisting people with SUD at all stages of recovery. Coordinated outdoor

activities such as surfing, hiking, and camping. Conducted community outreach and spoke at various

treatment facilities to raise awareness. Worked one on one with team members and conducted group

fitness training sessions. Helped team niembers in times of emotional crisis and encouraged them to

grow.

(Recovery Specialist^ Granite Pathways Regional Access Points Service September 2016 - April 2017

Assisted clients with SUD in finding treatment within the NH continuum of care network. Documented

all interactions in WITS software and conducted follow-up within or operating procedure. Conducted

outreach within the community and gave presentations at various public health meetings within the

areas I was assigned.

(Internship) Wyman Reentry (Boston Public Health Commission) February 2016 - May 2016.

300-hour practicum as a substance abuse counselor in training. Worked with a population that came

straight from incarceration to this treatment and reentry program. Performed 12 core functions of a

substance abuse counselor. Conducted various groups, one on one, and case management functions.

(Unit Manager) Substance Abuse Residential Rehabilitation Treatment Program Nov. 2015 - Feb. 2016

Worked as the unit manager for this program of the VA Boston Healthcare System. Provided a peer

support role. Orientation of new patients to the program, safety checks of patient bedrooms and

medication storage to ensure compliance with accreditation standards. Ordering food and stocking the

kitchen for the patients as well as restocking the office.

(Recovery Vehicle Operator, Mechanic, Maintenance Supervisor) New Hampshire Army National Guard

February 2008-September 2014

I supervised maintenance section with four Soldiers, and I was responsible for maintaining equipment

worth more than 12 million dollars. Instructed, supervised, and trained Soldiers on tasks such as

equipment inspection, repair, and documenting deficiencies on appropriate forms. Trained Soldiers for

field and combat operations while attending Military training courses to improve my techniques and

leadership style in accordance with Army Regulation. While in service I attended classes such as Combat

life saver, Master driver. Vehicle recovery, and a Warrior leadership course. I deployed in 2010-2011 in

support of Operation New Dawn to Kuwait/Iraq.

Education

Redcap Leadership Academy class of 2020

Southern New Hampshire University, Psychology with a focus in Addictions, 2019-present (Online

classes estimated completion date 2022. Current GPA: 3.89)

University of Massachusetts Boston, Addictions Counseling Education Program, 2015-2016

Plymouth Regional High School, 2005
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Granite Pathways Workforce Readiness
RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

(through 9/30/20)

Whitney Brown Employment
Specialist/Contract Manager

$43,680.00 100 $43,680.00

Casey Lutz Associate Director of Quality
Assurance and Business Dev

$90,000.00 30% $27,000.00

Duslin Ward Director, Safe Harbor $56,000.00 16% $8,960.00

Donna Keefe Director of New Initiatives $77,690.00 30% $23,308.00

Tara Mercado Billing Specialist $55,000 25% $13,750.00

Patricia Reed State Director In kind $0
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JelTrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Ktlji S. Fos
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AW HUMAN SERVICES

D/ra/O/V FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603.271.9544 1.800.852-3345 Cxt 9544

Fsx: 603.271 -4332 TOO Access: I -800.735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

August 28, 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services Division for Behavioral Health, to enter
into agreement with Granite Pathways (Vendor # 228900-8001), 10 Ferry Street, Suite 319, Concord,
NH 03301, in an amount not to exceed $195,234.48, to provide Workforce Readiness and Vocational
Training Programs for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder, effective upon date of Governor and Council
approval, through September 29. 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for State
Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriatior) of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE OPIOID
RESPONSE GRANT

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Numl>er Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $149,896.32

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $45,338.16

Total: $195,234.48

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the design and implementation of vocational training supports
and workforce readiness programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorders in treatment and recovery
settings who are seeking to join and/or re-join the workforce. This vendor was selected for this project
through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on The Department of Health
and Human Services' web site from November 15, 2018 through December 13, 2018. In addition, a
notice was sent by email to a wide variety of stakeholders and potential vendors. The Department
received four (4) proposals. The proposals were reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with
program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough discussion of the strengths and
weaknesses of the proposals/applications. The Score Summary is attached. Employment has long been
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

recognized as a critical element in the recovery process, providing people with hope and opportunity to
move forward in the recovery process that is determined by principles of self-determination.

This request represents the final one (1) of two (2) contracts to provide vocational training
supports and workforce readiness programs. The Governor and Executive Council previously approved
one (1) contract on August 14. 2019 (Item #10).

The State of New Hampshire received funding through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA) State Opioid Response (SOR) grant opportunity. New Hampshire
will use evidence-based methods to expand treatment, recovery, and prevention services to individuals
with OUD in NH. These critical funds will strengthen established programs that have had a positive impact
on the opioid crisis as well as expand the. capacity for programs that have shown promise in helping
individuals battling an opioid misuse issue and stem the tide of the addiction epidemic in NH. In 2017,
NH had 488 opioid-related deaths. 2.774 .emergency naloxone (Narcan) administrations, and 6.684
emergency department opioid related visits. NH is ranked as having the third highest overdose rate in
the country at 39 individuals per 100,000 population. The scope of work was developed, in part, through
a public comment forum which identified gaps in the system aimed at workforce training opportunities for
individuals with OUD. The services provided through these funds should leverage resources and
facilitate connections with the multiple workforce initiatives for individuals with SUD/OUD that have
emerged over the past two years, including the Governor's Recovery Friendly Workplace Program and
the Department of Labor National Health Emergency Demonstration grant for individuals in recovery,
provided under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014.

This agreement will , require the vendor to integrate workforce readiness programming into
treatment and recovery settings, including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The vendor will link the individual to appropriate
vocational trainings^with the provision of training stipends and other resources to aid the individual on the
path to employment. Vocational training may include, but is not limited to assistance with resume writing,
job applications, and improving interviewing skills.

Unique to these services is. a robust level of client-specific, data that will be available, which will
be collected in coordination with the Regional Hubs that were approved by Governor and Executive
Council at the October 31, 2018 meeting. The SOR grant requires that all individuals served receive a
comprehensive assessment at several time intervals, specifically at,intake, six (6) months and upon
(discharge. Through collaborative agreements with the vendor under this contract, the Regional Hubs will
be responsible for gathering data on client-related outcomes including; recovery status, criminal justice
involvement, employment, and housing needs at the tirhe intervals listed above. This data will enable the
Department to measure short and long-term outcomes associated with SOR-funded initiatives and to
determine which programs are generating the best results for the clients served.

Approximately one hundred (100) individuals will be served from'Governor and Executive Council
approval through September 29. 2020.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon' satisfactory delivery of
sen/ices, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council. -

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals in recovery
seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options. Workforce
participation and consistent employment are critical components of an individual's ability to remain in
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Administration. State Opioid Response Grant, (CFDA #93.788, FAIN TI081685)

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available. General' Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Jetyey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Depariment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Workforce Readlnoes and Vocational Training
Programs for Individuals with Opioid Use

Disorder

RFP Name

RFP.2019-BDAS-12-WORKF

RFP Number Reviewer Names

1.
Jill Burke, Chief of Prevention &

Educational Services. BDAS

Bidder Name Pass/Fail

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

Melissa Girard. Oiv Behavioral Hith

Business Administrator III

Greater Tllton Area Family Resource Center 750 659

2 Gene Patnode, Oiv Family Assist,
Business & Industry Mgr.

2
' Headrest, Inc. 750 515

. Barry Sandberg, Program
' Specialist (V. Oiv Behavioral Hith

Granite Pathways,.Inc. 750 583

Lindy teller. Resources &
Development Admin BDAS

4
Family Resource Center at Gortiam 750 443

6.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (venloo 5/8/lS)
Subject; Wbricforce Readii^ & Vocatibhal Trtuning Pfogmitis for Individuals with OUD/RF?'2019»BDAS»I2.WORKF-OI.

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 Slate Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Granite Pathways
1.4 Contractor Address

IOFcrTySi,Stc30e,3iq
Concord, NH, 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Numbe

603-968-3810

1.6 Account Number
05-95-92-920510-7040

aoio^ttooi—

1.7 Completion Date

September 29.2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$195,234.48

1.9 Contracting Omcer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director
Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.11 Contractor.Si 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signttory

km
1.13 Acknowledgement: Stiteof .Countyof

On t ̂  »before the undersigned officer, personally appear^ the person identified in bl^.k 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block' 1.11. and acknowledged that j^e .executed (his document in the capiKily
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

r^n.

PPNHAKECFENo^ PubDo • New HoimsMro

1.13.2 Name end Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

1. M State Agency Signature

i Aooroval by inc

Dale la.
Adminifiratlon, D

. 15 Name and Title of State Agency Si^tbi^.

'crsorual1.16 Approval by ineN.H. Department of Administration, Division ofPersonacl (if applicable)

By: , Director, On;

1.17 Approval by the ̂ omey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By: — / / / On:

1.18 Approve Gov

By:

Executive Council Ofapplicable)

On:

Page 1 of 4
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FORM mJMBER F-37 (version S/8/1S)
Subjeci; Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD/RFP.2(>19-BDAS>12-WORKF-Ol

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission (o Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any Information that is private, confidential or proprietary mufl
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:'

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Granite Pathways
1.4 Contractor Address

10FerrySt,Ste>00,
Concord, NH, 03301

l.S Contractor Phone

Number

603-968-3810

1.6 Account Number

2974-34-ROOl

1.71 Completion Date

September 29,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$195,234.48

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director
Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.11 Contractor SigBatTr»««s. 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

\tPc4-Ar-' ftV V'HNmxrt'tiQ'-Vrtikti

On ^ , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

ISeal'l

^  OONNAKEEFE
uu n ^ HampsWfO wMy Commission Expfms Soptombar^^g

M. 13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

C"?* \rr^cjkO\-- 0"^ trv'A- \ V\
i;i4 State Agency Signature

Administration, t>

. 1S Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

'erlonul1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, uivision of Perlonael Of applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the i^omey General (Form, Substance and Execution) 0/applicable)

By:-^// / X/ X/ On:

1.18 Approval b>Khe Governor aj)d Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block I.I C*State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hcreunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1. 18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become eH'ective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1. 14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services performwi by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs Incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. .

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, alt obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limilaiion, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any.
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment ore identified and more pariicularty described In
EXHIBIT B which is IncoTporatcd'hcrcin by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services: The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page

5.3 TTtc State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding uniexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, Including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afnimative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with ail the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the Slate or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in (he Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
. this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion bate in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined eflbn to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State"
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting OfTicer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurreiKe of any Event of Default, the Slate
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Ekfault is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the .
performance of^, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, chans,'Sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
^phic representations, computer proems, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Stale, and
shall be returned to the Slate upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
ch^ier 91 'A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHEBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither en agent nor
an employee of the Stale. Neither the Contractor nor any of Us
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to Its employees.

12.ASSICNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONtRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Slate, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO ibe acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

U. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and .
maintain In force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following,
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI ,()00,000per occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

rF>€>
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14.3 The ContrBclor shall furnish (o the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cenificaiefs)
of insurance for all insiirance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and ere
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 - A
(" Workers' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 28>-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
opplicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The Stale shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State ofNew Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Slate to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate ofNew Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer ony such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and (he words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the inteipretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHrSIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by (he parties hereto and only afler approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Govemor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire unless no

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Oepar^ent of Health and Human Services
Worlcforce Risadiness end Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed descn'ption of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
. Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training
Programs for a minimum one hundred (100) individuals with Opioid Use
Disorder (OUD) in the Seacoast region.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure Individuals who participate in Workforce
Readiness and Vocational Training programs are referred to treatment and
recovery services when applicable.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide workforce readiness programming to individuals
with Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) who are receiving treatment or recovery
support services. The Contractor shall ensure workforce readiness
programming includes, but is not lirhited to:

2.2.1. Job specific skills training.
V

2.2.2. Resume and cover leher assistance.

2.2.3. Communication skills.

2.2.4. Time management skills.

2.2.5. Budgeting and financial management skills.

2.2.6. Customer service training.

2.2.7. Job retention approaches.

2.2.6. Networking skills.

2.2.9. Application and interview assistance, including mock interviews.

2.2.10. Connections to employment resources.

Granite Pathways Exhibit A Contractor lnitiats^^^>^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OLID

Exhibit A

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure the facility is open weekdays from 8;30 am.
Eastern Standard Time (EST), until each evening's programming ends and on
Saturdays from 8;00 am until 2:30 pm (EST).

2.4. The Contractor shall recruit individuals through methods, that include, but are
not limited to:

2.4.1. Social media.

2.4.2. Regional Providers.

2.4.3. Doorways.

2.4.4. Community members.

2.4.5. Employer groups.

2.5. The Contractor shall implement a,process to identify, recruit and engage
individuals with an ODD, including individuals not currently receiving services
from the Contractor, who may be Interested in pursuing employment and/or
educational opportunities or y^o may be underemployed and are seeking a.
living wage.

2.6. The Contractor shall screen potential center participants with OUD who are
unemployed, underemployed or seeking to make a career transition and
schedule same day appointments, when available, with the Employment
Specialist to initiate the intake process.

/

2.7. The Contractor shall provide information regarding its workforce, job placement
and employer education and support programs via mailings and presentations
to community partners through meetings and other relevant forums to describe
its workforce program and to promote the quality of its labor pool.

2.8. The Contractor shall refer participants to treatment to and/or accept referrals
'  from:

2.8.1. Residential providers.

2.8.2. Recovery housing for mothers and children.

2.8.3. Other sober houses in their region.

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure all partidpants are advised, informed or made
aware of all services available, including but not limited to:

2.9.1. Recovery housing.

2.9.2. Sober Housing.

2.9.3. Aftercare services.

2.9.4. Employment support services.

2.10. The Contractor shall ensure all services are provided in a manner that
demonstrates operations are managed according to the five (5) tenants of:

Gronile Pathways Exhibit A Contractor Inltial^^
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New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services
Worfcforce Readiness and Vodstional Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

Exhibit A

2.10.1. Urgency.

2.10.2. Ownership.

2.10.3. Learn by doing.

2.10.4. Lifelong learning.

2.10.5. Motivation through productivity.

2.11. The Contractor shall accept evaluation results from referring providers and
have an intake process that is comprised of the following:

2.11.1. Psychosocial evaluation;

2.11.2. Career essentials review; and

2.11.3. Comprehensive service plan.

2.12. The Contractor shall determine appropriate level of program engagement and
activities for each participant based on a comprehensive intake/assessment
process, current life circumstances, and current level of treatment, if any, which
may include:

2.12.1. Recent detox/inpatient/intensive treatment defined as fifteen (15) or
more hours per week, that results in an individual being assigned to
receive Work Readiness 101/Career Exploration services.

2.12.2. Current non-intensive treatment defined as less than 15 hours per
week, that results in an individual receiving concurrent workforce
readiness activities and treatment hours ensuring workforce
activities are scheduled in consideration of the participant's
treatment schedule to avoid any scheduling conflicts.

2.12.3. No active treatment that results in the individual being placed on a
fast-track ensuring other ancillary barriers to employment are
addressed and accelerated suite of job preparation services are
provided to move individuals rapidly to job placement.

2.13. The Contractor shall ensure services are offered in a flexible manner in multiple
modalities including, but not limited to:

2.13.1. Instructor led, class-based training.

2.13.2. Group-based activities.

2.13.3. One-on-one training sessions.

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure Individuals are enrolled in other,services and

supports that aid individuals in recovery who are seeking to enter the workforce
for which they are eligible, as appropriate, including, but not limited to:

2.14.1. The Commuriity Development Finance Authority Recovery Friendly
Workplace Initiative Program Development Pilot.

Granite Pathways Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Worfcforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD.

Exhibit A

2.14.2. The NH Department of Labor National Health Emergency
Demonstration grant for individuals In recovery.

2.14.3. The Governor's Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative.

2.14.4. NH Works.

2.14.5. NH Employment Security.

2.15. The Contractor shall provide Power of Possible Work Readiness curriculum,
which includes but is not limited to:

2.15.1. Access to 240 hours of job search/job readiness content via
FedCap Academy, an online web-based learning management tool
available 24 hours a day/7 days a week.

2.15.2. Participation in employer-led mock interviews.

2.15.3. 60 hours of dynamic.instruction and time management activities
designed to produce "employer ready" job seekers.

2.15.4. GetHired!-

2.15.5. Exploring My Opportunities.

2.15.6. Power Interviewing.

2.15.7. Power of Personality.

2.15.8. Positive Me!

2.16. The Contractor shall utilize Single Stop USA to determine if an individual is
eligible for Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), Women,
Infants, and Children (WIC), Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC) or Child Care
Tax Credit (CTC), health insurance, and/or Low Income Energy Assistance.

2.17. The Contractor shall collaborate with local higher educational and vocational
training institutions in order to identify and provide vocational training and
educational opportunities to individuals in the treatment and/or recovery service
setting.

2.18. The Contractor shall conduct a comprehensive vocational assessment to
determine ah individual's level of skilisi strengths, and readiness to seek and

' enter the workforce ensuring the process is based on a person-centered focus
grounded in individual choice and self-determination.

2.19. The Contractor shall utilize Diagnostic Vocational Evaluation (DVE) for
conducting vocational assessments. DVE is an assessment provided to
individuals to determine the following:

2.19.1. Vocational interests;

2.19.2. Aptitudes;

2.19.3. Skills;

Granite Pathways Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Wprlcforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for individuals with OUD

Exhibit A

2.19.4. Capabilities; and

2.19.5. Educational attainmentlevels.

2.20. The Contractor shall utilize the vocational assessment and participant inputs to
design individual vocational plans of action that include appropriate levels of
services and resources, including but not limited to:

2.20.1. Resume writing.

2.20.2. Job application writing.

2.20.3. Improving client interviewing skills.

2.20.4. Motivational interviewing to increase a client's willingness and
readiness to seek education or employment opportunities may also
be required.

2.21. The Contractor shall ensure all staff are trained in Motivational Enhancement

Techniques (MET), which includes but is not limited to:

2.21.1. Open-ended Question, Affirmations, Reflective Listening and
Summarizing (OARS).

2.21.2. Four Motivational Interviewing principles: Express Empathy, Roll
with Resistance. Support Self-efficacy, and Develop Discrepancy.

2.22. The Contractor shall ensure individuals are assessed for and receive, as
appropriate:

2.22.1. Financial assistance for transportation to classes.

2.22.2. Educational supplies, including but not limited to textbooks, as
necessary.

2.22.3. Access to computers and support for electronic job search
functions.

2.23. The Contractor shall establish an employment plan for each participant that
addresses previous barriers to employment, including but not limited to:

2.23.1. Poor job history.

2.23.2. Substance use disorder impacting performance.

2.23.3. Criminal background.

2.24. The Contractor shall provide individuals with external employment resources
and assist with gaining access to employment through activities that include,
but are not limited to:

2.24.1. Providing transportation assistance to job fairs.

2.24.2. Providing opportunities to meet with job coaches.

Granite Pathways Exhibit A Contractor lnitials^^^^,^_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Wort(force Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

Exhibit A

2.24.3. Providing individuals with job-shadowing and internship
opportunities.

2.25. The Contractor shall ensure individuals seeking vocational training or career
development education are provided with resources that support those goals,
including but not limited to:

2.25.1. Training and class stipends.

2.25.2. Financial aid and grant applications.

2.25.3. Program application submission assistance.

2.26. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative
to offer opportunities for local businesses to engage with potential employees
in recovery as a means to reduce stigma, identify employment opportunities,
and increase the numt>er of businesses identifying as Recovery Friendly.

2.27. The Contractor shall utilize a sector-based approach to job development and
target a diverse range of businesses ensuring activities include, t)ut are not
limited to:

2.27.1. Conducting personalized initial outreach to a business's hiring
managers.

2.27.2. Explaining the purpose and benefits of the Initiative, including but
not limited to financial incentives that are available.

2.27.3. Requesting a meeting to explore the possibility of enlisting the
business in the effort.

2.28. The Contractor shall educate employers on services available to them for hiring
individuals which shall include, but is not limited to:

2.28.1. State's transitional benefits.

2.28.2. Support with transportation.

2.28.3. Retention case management.

2.28.4. Personal development platform.

2.28.5. Fedcap Academy.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure the Program Director manages the day-to-day
program operations which includes, but is not limited to:

3.1.1. Contracts.

3.1.2. Space.

3.1.3. Human resources.

3.1.4. Budgeting.

Granite Pathways Exhibit A Contractor Inillais'"^
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3.1.5. Ensuring efficiency of workflow.

3.1.6. Ensuring implementation and operation of all program services and
operations.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Employment Specialist job duties include, but
are not limited to:

3.2.1. Administering intakes and assessments.

3.2.2. Coordinating employment-related activities and offsite trainings.

3.2.3. Providing barrier remediation services.

3.2.4. Providing employment and training related activities and supportive
services in a classroom environment.

3.3. The Contractor shall ensure the Job Developer identifies, develops and
maintains relationships with employers in order to create employment or on-
the-job/job shadowing opportunities for individuals.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall track and report, on a quarterly basis. Department data
requirements for programs including, but not limited to:

4.1.1. Number and type of recruitment activities for individuals with an
opioid use disorder.

4.1.2. Number of individuals in the program with demographics such as
age, gender, race, and ethnicity.

4.1.3. Vocational services provided per individual.

4.1.4. Start date of employment per individual.

4.1.5. Type of position per individual.

4.1.6. Name of employers per individual.

4.1.7. Length of employment per individual.

4.1.8. Aggregate percentage of individuals employed per month.

4.1.9. Number of employers recruited per month.

4.1.10. Types of supports provided to employers to recruit, hire, and retain
individuals in recovery per month

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure ninety percent (90%) of individuals complete
provided training programs.

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of individuals gain
employment.

Granite Pathways Exhibit A Contractor 101113)7^ ̂
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5.3. The Contractor shall ensure contact and coordination with one hundred percent
(100%) of Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative employers.

6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

6.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded
initiatives, the Contractor shall establish formal Information sharing and referral
agreements vyith all Regional Hubs for substance use services that comply with
all applicable confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2.

6.2. The Contractor shall complete client referrals to applicable Regional Hubs for
substance use services within two (2) business days of a client's admission to
the program.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and Implementation
plans associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place
within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date.

6.3.1. If the Contractor is unable to offer services within the required
timeframe, the Contractor shall submit an updated inhplementation
plan to the Department for approval to outline anticipated service
start dates.

6.3.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and
liquidate unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90)
days of the contract effective date.

Granite Pathways Exhibit A Contractor Initials^ ̂
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. the State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with Federal funds as follows; 100% Federal Funds from the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. State Opioid Response
Grant, CFDA #93.788, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN), TI081685.

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's cunent
and/or future funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-3.

4.2.The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement
for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

4.3.The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to initiate payment.

4.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufTicient funds
are available.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to Melissa.Girard(®dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

SOR Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Behavioral Health

129 Pleasant St, 4^^ FL
Concord, NH 03301

8. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services

Granite Pathways Exhibit B Contractor Initials'^
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provided, or rf the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

10. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Granite Pathways
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SPECIAL PRQVIStQNS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. •Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility detennination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form arid that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it Is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding. It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall.be deemed to obligate or require,the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate

which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reirnburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementin

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - special Proviskins Cont/actor Initials
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In swhich event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of Individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who Is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such servicesat
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records; In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected.by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls. ar>d other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (Including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and ail Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govemmental Organizations,
Programs. Activities and Functions.-Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excenpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it Is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall, be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use end disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such Information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; end provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports contiaining a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the re^rt and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall t>e submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report; A final report shall be submitted within thir^ (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
and other informaUon required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upori payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this.(report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, sMth funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal autfiorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility, if any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit, in connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that; during the term of this Contract the facilities shali
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, end requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): the Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civii Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a singie award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.u$doj/at>out/ocf/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited Engljsh Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Profidency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crirne Control and Safe Streets Act of 1966 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whiatleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to.all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whjstleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees wortdng on this contract will t>e subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at .
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 826 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as descrit>ed in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DMHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished-through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanction's if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subicontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibiiities.and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials.1^
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
Jake corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect Items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: if applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms.and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit 6 of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

oftnvit
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4, Gonditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payments. In whole or in part,
under (his Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds.
Including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or othenA^lse
modiftes the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement end the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall, have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State, shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the Stale is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In (he event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within IS days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State end shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the State related to the teanination of (he Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are iransilioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the Stale as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years.
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Govemor and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-t - Revisions/Exceptions to Standard Contract Longuapo Contractor Initials.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free WoHtpiace Ad of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-6.90, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C; 701 etseq.), end further agre^ to have the Contractor's representative, as idehtifi^ m Sections
1.11 and 1:12 of the General Provisions execute the fbllowing Certificatioh:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTIV^CTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is r^uired by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Orug-^ree
Workplace Act of 19M (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seg.). the January 31.
1989 regut^iohs were amend^ arid published as Part il of the May 25,1990 F^eral Register (pages
21681-21691), and r^iiire certifi^tion by grahteira (and by Inference, 8ub-gra'nte:es and.sub^
coritractors), pnor to award, that they wil maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017;630(c) of the
.regul^ioh provides that a grants (and by mferier)ce. sub-grantees and 8ub<ont'rectors) that is a State
may elect to make one ceitification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant d'unng the federai fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set oi4 below is a
material representatiorS of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certrficatlQ'n or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of parents, suspension or
terminatloh of grants; or government wide suspehsipri or debarment. Contmctors usiri'g this form should
send it to: '

Comrnissioner

NH D^artment of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasarit Street,
Conco^, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will Or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statemerit notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distn*bution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taker! against employees for Eolation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inforni employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. the grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free vrarkpiace;
1.2.1 Any available dtug counseling, rehabilitation, end employee asslMance programs; and
1.2.4. The; periatties that rnay be irrippsed upon employees for drug ati>use violations

occurring in the workpla.ce;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be erigaged in the performance of the grant be

giyen a Copy of the statement required by. paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the ernpioyee in the staternent required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the ernptoyer in writing of his or her convictipri for a violation of a c.rirhinal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
coriviction;

1.5. Notifyirig the agency in v^iting, within ten calendar days after recervitig notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Erhpioyers of convicted erhptoyees must provide notice, iricludihg position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activ^ the corivicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExhlWt D - CeftWcatlon regarting Drug Free Vendor Inttlal^^
Wortpiace Bequlrernents • o 'M -J O
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identific^ion number(B) of each affected grant;

.  i:6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 cajeridar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employe who is so convicted
1  1. T^ing appropriate persorinel action against such an employee, up to and including

teirnihation, cohsisterit wHh the recjuirerhents of the Reh^ilitatlon'Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehdtiilitatipn program apprbv^ for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementatibn of paragraphs 1.1,1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the sitefs) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name;

Date Name:
Title: \ T

EJthlWt D - CertHlcatton rogartlno Drug Freo Vendor Initials^ -
WorkptoceRequlrcmente ^ f\,uO
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Sectior) T3 of the General Provisioris agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sedion 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lbbbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, .and further agrees to have the Coritractor's representative, as Identified in Sedibns 1.11
and 1.12 of the Gerieral Provisions execute the followir;ig Certlficatioh;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICESCONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION r CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered);
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
.*Child Support Enfbrcemerit Program under Title IV-D
'Social Service Block Grer^t Program under Title XX
'Medicald Prbgrarh under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Tltki VI
'Chijd Care Develppmerit Block Grartt under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or v^li be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influer)ce an officer or employee pf .ar^y agpricy. a Member
of Congress, an PfTicer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Memt^r of Congress in
connection with the awardirig of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant; loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have beeri paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attemptir^g to influence ar> officer .or employee of any agency, a Merhber of Congress,
an officer or erriplpyee of Congress, or ah employee of a Merriber of Congress In connection with this
Federal contract grant, loan, or.cbopemtive agfeenient (and by specific mention Sub-grahtee or sub
contractor), the undersigried shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form'to
Report Lobbying. In accPrdarice with its ihstrVctions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for 8ut>^award8 at all tiers (including 8ut>cor^tract8. sub-grants, and coritracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub^recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which rejiance was placed when thietransactipn
iwas made or entered Into.. Siibmissiori of this certification is a prerequisite .for making or entering into this
trarisaction imposed by Section 1352. title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who .feils to file the required
ceilificatibn sh'all be subjeci to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and hot nibre than $100,000 for
each such'failure.

Vendor Name:

Date Name: .

Title: q. ̂  ̂ CTor

ExWbll E- Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor irililala ̂ —
cu/DHHsnio7t3 Page 1 of 1 Date^-ott"/^
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. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSiON
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responslbiiity Matters, and further agrees to have the Cdntr^or's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTl.FICATON
1. By signing and submitting this prop<»ai (contrad). the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below win not riecessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective pariicif>ant shaii submit an
e)9lanatloh of why it canrwt provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
Mnaidered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Hunian Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospe^e prirhary
participant to furnish a certificatiori or an explanation shall disqualify such persori from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certrfication in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliarice was placed
when DHHS determine to enter into this transaction. If it Is later determlhecl that the pimpective
prirriary participant knowingly rendered an embneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Gpyerhrhent, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospecth^ primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is subnnitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certtficalion was erroneous when submitted or has becohfie erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred," "suspended," "inellgibie.' "lower tier coveied
transaction.* "participant," "pemoh," "prirhary covered thahsdction," "principal," "prbposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules impl^enting Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached defirlitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covei^ transadion ije entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower .tier covered
tranMction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that, it will include the
clause titled "Certificatiori Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineiigibility arid Voiuritary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transa^ions," provided by DHHS, without mbdificaWori, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in ell solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered trari^ction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, pr 'invplurita.rily excluded
frorh the covered transaction, unjess It know that the certificattori is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method .and frequency by, which it determines the eiigibiiity of Its principals. Each
participant may. but Is. not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to rerider in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowMge end

EjtfilbH F - CemfJcfltton RoflnnJlng Debarment. Suspertjlon Vendor
And Other ReiponjlWlRy Matter* _
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infoimatlon of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a poident
pereoh in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these ihstrudioris. If a participant in a
covered transadion knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineiigitple. or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, In
addition to other remedies available to the F^eral govemrrierit, DHHS may terminate this transactrpn
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective prirnary participant certifies to the tiest of its knowledge end belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

yoluntarity excluded from covered transactions by arty Federal depairtmerit of eigency:
11.2. haN« not within a three-|^r period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a cMI judgment rendered against tt^ for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtairiing, jsttemptirig to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction of a contract under a public transactbn; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or r^eiving stolen property:

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(  (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)

of this certification; and
11 .A. have not withjn a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public

transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By sigriing and subrnitting this lower tier proposal (contract)', the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Raft 76, certifies to the.best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals;
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed'fof debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal depariment or agency.
13.2: where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this dause entitled 'Cer^ication Regarding Debarment, Susiiwnsiori. Ineligibility, end
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without mc^tficatior) in all lower tier covered
transactions arid in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

S  -1R
Name;Date Name: _ !

Etfiibit F - Cerllflcatton Rassrdlng Debannent. Suspension Vendor Inltiab2
And Other Responsibility MattersnQ9iwii»iuuiix Niaueiv
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CERTIFICATiON OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor idfshtifl^ in Section 1.3 of the General Provisibhs agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgraritees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondlscriminatjon iequirements. which rhay Include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 UiS.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employmeirit practices or in
the delivery of services or beneftts, on the basis of race, color, religion, r\atiohal origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section ̂ 72(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal furiding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
ben^rts, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, arid sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requiremeiits;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origiri in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employmerit and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

-the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), v^ich prohibits
discrirriinatidn arid ensures equal opportunity for persons wHh disabilities in erriployment, State and local
govemment services, public eccomrnodations. commercial facilities, arid transportation;

-the Education Ameridrnentsof 1972(20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex iri federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age iri programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not Include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice R^ulatlons - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opporturii^; Policies
end Procedures); ̂ ecutive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based arid cornmunity
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organiutions); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National. Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2,2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Con^ct Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects erhployees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate seit out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant'. False certification or yiolatiori of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, susperision or terimination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or
debarment.

BMbilG

Vendor tnUeh ̂
Nunatortnln—an. Equal Treesrwi d Qreetodone'
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State admlnlstret'ive agency makes a finding of
di^rirnination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the iwpient will forward e Mpy of the finding to the pfTice for Civil Rights, to
the applicabte contracting agency or division wtthii) the Department of Health and Human Services, arid
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative ais Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Prbvisiofis. to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated ebove.

Vendor Name:

Date Name: ^
Title:

ExNbilG
Vendor liSUeh;

C«riSerte#> dCempflew W> to Tfntiiard of Orpwtodw
ttOd VMl$iCl0W pf0tllC80rt>
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Toba^ Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking nOt be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the sehnces are funded by Federal prograrhs either
directly or through State or local govemrnents, by Federal grar^t, contract, ban, or loan guarantee. The
taw does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities furtded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portiohs of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil, monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day ahd/or the Imposition of an admthistratrye compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
represer^tive as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12of theGei^ral Provisions, to exMute the foilov^ng
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all apjplicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

9
Dale N^e:

E}tf>lbit H - Ceniflcetion RegsnJlng Vendor Inttlats
Envtronrrwnlsl T^ccb Smoke ^
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Heal^ InformatlorS. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined hereirt, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health infomiation under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity'
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Sen/ices.

(1 Peflnttlona.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such tenn in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulatioris.

d. 'Designated Record Set* shall have the ̂ me meaning as the term 'designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aggregation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Acf means thie Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlll Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the Arherican Recovery and Reinvestnient Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' imeans the Health Insurance Pprtabiiity and Accountability Act of 1996, Pubjic Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Iriformation, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendmerits thereto.

i. 'Individuar shall have the same meaning as the. term 'individual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j- 'Privacv Rule' shall rnean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
informatiori* in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or oh behalf of Covered Entity. c—-

3/2014 Vftndof InmatfT VT
HesRt) Insurance Portability Act
BualneuAuodataAgreement ^ r^., , O
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I. 'Required bv Law^ shall have the same rrieaning as the term "required by law^ In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary* shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human ̂rvlces or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 0, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Iriformatjon" means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Deifinitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F:R. Parts 160,162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outliried under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employes arid agents, shall not use, disclose, mairitaih or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the (Privacy and Security Rule.

b! Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggr^ation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the exterit Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreertient from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification

. Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breacti.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide seryices under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Businj^s
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Associate shell refrain from disclosirig the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rute^ the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
sijch additional restri^ons and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of BuBlrieaa Asaoclate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate t>ecomes aware of any use or disclosure of protect^
health informabon not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected heal^ information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Busiriess Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but hot be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health Information Involved, including the
'  ty^s of Identifrers and ̂ e likelihood of reHdentification;
.0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the

disclosure was made;
q Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

' 0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48. hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with alj sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available ail of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI coritairied herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party teheficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who vrill be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 3 of the standard
coritract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health infomriation.

f: Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agr^meint.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Eritity, or as direct^ by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. vyithin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about ah individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable CoverOd Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such inforrnation as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with resi^ct to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. Iri the event any Individual requests access to, amendment of, of accounting of PHI
directly frorn the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
resporislbillty of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individiiars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individuars request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Busmess Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreernent, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherv/ise agreed to In
the Agreement, Business Associate! shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, riequires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Aissociate shall certify to
Cbver^ Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitatioh(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation rriay affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction rhay affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may imrhediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination hor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
.violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reaulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to tirne. A reference in the Agreemerlt, as amended to include this Extiibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary fpr Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has ho ownership rights
with respect to the f^HI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall t>e resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. _
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e. Segreoatlon. If any term or cohdrtion of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(8) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can given effect without the Invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and ihdemriificatipn provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services ( w \ CxAVajJGl rQY\
The State Nameo^ the vendor

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

\a ■
Name of Author!^ Representative Name of Authorized Repreisentabve

.  C~fi S-\ fgC^oO
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

Nama-of the Vendor

Date t ' '
^ - 9. \

Date
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CERTiFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABiUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT fFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individua)
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data relied to executive compensation and associated first^ief sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initiai award is tMlow $25,000 but subsequent grant rhodificatlons result In e total award equal to or over
$25.000. the award is sutiject to the FFATA reporting requirernents, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reportirig Subaward and Executive Com^nsation Information}, the
Departinent of Health and Humari Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward of contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amourit of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the pur^se of the funding action
7. Lpcatioh of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Uniquiei identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;

ib.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
rewnues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compen^tion iriformation is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendrr^nt Is made.
The'Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Ad. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Pari 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Cornpenution Information), and further agrees
to have the ̂ ntrador's representative, as ideritified in Sedions I.ITand 1.12 of the Gerieral Provisions
execute the follpwing Certification:
The below fiamed Vendor agrees to provide needed information ea outiihed above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services end to comply with.alt applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Trahsparehcy Ad.

Vendor Name:

Date Name:

Title:

Exhibit J - Certlflcatlon R«gartling the Federal Funding Vendor Inltlala^
AccountsbBlty Ar>d Trahsperency Act (FFATA) Compflance ^
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed quMtions are true and accurate.

1. the DUNS number for your entltv *l6 ̂

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business of organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, end/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues frohn U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to above is YES, please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through peiriodic reports filed urider section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to d3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your busiriess or
organization ere as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU«HHSni0713
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information arid
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on trehalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed' in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

6. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either,failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

/
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Departrnent of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to ti-arismlt) will be considered ari open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
Phi or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's Identity, such as their name, social security numt)er, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying Information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

A

10. "Protected Health Information' (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying OHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to t)e tx^und by additional
restrictions over and at)ove those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and rriust abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from discbsed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposjes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure trartsmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting OHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email; End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and t>eing sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data-, the secure socket layers (SSL) rhust be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data trarismitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also kno;^ as File Sharing Sites. End U0r may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data. I

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cert//7ed ground
mail within the contiriental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not trarisrriit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is ernploying remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must t>e
installed on the End User's mobile device(8) or laptop frpm which infomnatibn will be
trarismitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure RIe Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

II). RETENTION AND DISPOSITIGN OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor vrill only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, othervrise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State, of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices rriust have
currently'supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-matware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detectioh and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

8. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of

' New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
.  in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media

sanitlzatlon. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described In NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitizatlon, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and vkrill provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherv^se specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

I

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the Information llfecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc:).

vs. Losl update 10/09/16 Exhibit K Contfactor Inltlala^ ̂
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Coritractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sut>-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and

'  Contractor to.monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an altemate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department arid the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership memt>er within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

vs. LaslopdatoKVCWlS Exhibit K Coniractof
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in ail other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HiPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govem protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at http8://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section Vi. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is fumished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFi are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential information only if enervated and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.

vs. Last update 10/09/16 ExhtbilK Contractor Initials
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e. limit disclosure of the Cohfidentia) Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must t>e maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. LAS(upd«to lQrOd/18 ExhlbitK ContractorInltlab
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5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach nbtification methods, .timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported,, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformationSecurityOffrce@dhhs.nh.gov

vs. Last update l(V0S/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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